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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

Last aight {(October 12) we had a very interesting and informative mecting at Hollywild
Animal Park in loman, SC. We learned about the history of Hollywild in Spartanburg County and
enjoyed & guided tour of the park.

Our final meeting of 2006 will be at 6 p.m. November 9 at Boiling Springs First Baptist
Church, Boiling Springs, SC. This historic church has much information to offer for persons
mnterested in genealogy.

Membets—I[ want to be honest with you. We are in financial difficulty. We have enough

money to publish this November 2006 quartetly only. We cannot publish another quarterly until
2007 dues are received.

If you want to receive the February 2007 quarterly we must receive your 2007 ducs of $20.00
by Jaguary 1, 2007. If we do not receive your dues by January 1, this November issue is the last you
will receive. At the Board meeting last night we discussed ncreasing dues to $25.00 per year because
of increased printing and postage costs. We decided to keep the dues at $20.00. We can coatinue 1o
print on schedule if you pay your dues by January 1.

If we do not receive your dues on time and you do not receive your quattedly, you will have
1o pay an extra $5.00 for each back issue you reguest.

[ hope we can keep the Piedmont Historical Society operating. We can do so if we receive
the support we need from the members. In an effort to continve to operate, we will print and send
quartethies only to those who pay.

Have good holidays and REMEMBER TO PAY YOUR DUES BEFORE JANUARY 1,
2007

Ay
Ll Coarcin

i

PO Box 1842
Spartanbusg, SC 29304

MEMBERSHIP FORM-—2007
Name el
Address Sl g e —
Phone No. — _ Email
$20.00 pasd by Sheek ook

The Piedmont Historical Society would like to inchude in future quarterlies a hst of surnames being
researched by members. This list should inchude information about the researching member o
contacts can be made. If you would like for your name and hist of sumames/persons you are
researching to be included in our publication, please complete the fknll(xv.'131g form. We must have
your signatute of consent for publication of your name and information before we can mchude your

hist. As you complete the form below, please include only the information you wish us 10 publish.
Name:

Muling address: b — 3 e - e e et
lelephone: N N o 2 o | LSS SO T v O N €

NAMES RESEARCHED (please print—hmit to 10 names)

Signature for consent to publish: __

Prnt name:

Please send queties and articles for considerstion for publication tor

Dr. James 1. Resd Reid)as@alltcloct
[ . ’ Narviith n L4 K7 UISA
Contact Person: Bob Cartee bgeantsei@bellsouth.ast B64-574.3056

iil
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FAMILY RECORD OF FIELDING SUDDUTH OF GREENVILLE DISTRICT

Source: Names and dates of birth provided by a document from the files of Mrs. Lorene Fisher, 22
Goose Trail, Taylors, SC 29687-5510; annotations from federal censuses and other records provided
by the editor.

Fielding Sudduth
Botn: May 27, 1785 1n Virginia
Died: 1863, Greenville Districe, South Carolins
Buried: Pleasant Hill Baptist Church Cemetery, Greeaville District, S
Tombstone mscription: Pvt Co S Nash’s Reg't  SC Inf-War of 1812

martted: abt 1810 in Greenville District, South Carohna

Rachel Elizabeth McMacken (McMakin)
Barm: 1795 in Greenville County, South Carobna
Died: after 1860 census of Greenville District, South Carolina

Their Children
(Al were barn in Greenville District, South Carohna)

1] Benjamin Perin Sudduth (born Oct. 3, 1811-died after 1870 census of Oktibbeha County, Miss,)
B. P. Suddith, age 35, b. 5.C., is listed in the 1850 census {bh 345/345) of Oktibbeha County,
Miss. Alexander Suddith, age 32, b. SC, was the only other member of this household, both
men being single then. In the 1860 census of Oktibbeha County, Miss., Statkville P.CO., Ben P.
Suddoth, from SC, age 48, was listed in hh 403/348 a5 an Overseer with a large estare
($12000/$16650;. He 1s single and has in his howschold Wesley Beart/Beard? (age 17, b. Ga.}
and W. H. Cross, Adme E. R. Bell dec’d. The 1870 census of Oktibbeha County (Starkville
P.O.) shows in hh 5657559 one P, R. Suddeth, age 60, b. 8C, a2 a farmer (3500 /$1488). He had
a wifie Sallie, age 56, b. SC, and john Landrum, farm laborer, age 25, b. Ga., i his househaold,

2] Joseph Carr Sudduth (born Oct. 18, 1813 died after 1870 census of Pontotoc County, Miss)
Jo' C Suddeth, age 47, b. SC, is enumerated m hh 422/422 of the 1860 census of Pontotoc
County, Miss., Red Land P.O., as a farmer ($1289/$2225). His wife was Thursa, whose age
Was given as '5‘1 and birthplace was SC. Their oldest child, Benj. P, age 19 was bomn in 5C and
the next child, Minerva, age 16, was bom in Mississippi. Six younger children were named, and
one Andrew |. Beard, age 24, b. Ga, was listed in the household as 2 farm lasborer. In 1870, the
Pontotoc Connty census, Pontotoc P.O., Joseph Suddith, age 56, SC, was enumerated m hh
161/161 with wife Thursy, age 46, SC, and five children. He was a farmer ($1800/8$1140).

[3] Mary Sudduth (born Oct. 11, 1815 died 7)

From Mastiage and Death Notices From the Up Country of South Carolina a5 Taken From
Greenvilie Newspapera1826-1863, p. 26, compiled by Brent Holcombe, is the following notice
from the Graessite Moxntaineer, issue of April 4, 1835: “Married on Sunday evening the 20th ult.
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[March 21, 1835], by Lewas H. Dickey, Faq, Mr. Furman Smith to Miss Mary Suddith of
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been the brde, although positive definite proof i lacking

[4] Susannah Sudduth (born July 16, 1817-died )
No additonal miormanion s known for Susannah, [Was it a mere cometdence that Benamin
Petin Sudduth and Joseph Carr Sudduth cach had a young male with surname of Beard hving
in their 1860 households—or were they uncles to the Beard youths?]

I5] Alexander Lawson Sudduth (born Jan. 11, 1819 died after 1870 census of Oktibbeha Co, Miss.)
Mexander Sudduth, sungle, was enumerated in the 1850 census with his brother B. P. in
Oktibbeha County, Miss. In 1860 Alex Suddoth was farming in Oktibbeha County (0/$1000
and hving w0 hh 670/575, Starkville P.OL.  His age was given as 37, b, 5C, while his wife
Emaline was 24, b. Ala. There were three children. The 1870 census of Oktibbehs County,
Daouble Springs P.O., hh 190/175, lists Alexandre Suduth at age 52, b. SC and as 2 farmer
(36 /$765). The name of hus wife 1 this census was Catherine, age 39, b. Tenn. The oldest
child was named Rachel, age 18, b. Miss. She had six sisters and one brother, all born in
Misstssippt. Catherine 1s buried in Center Grove Baptist Church Cemetery, Oktibbeha County,
Mississippt with the mscription: Catherine Sudduth, wife of A. L. Sudduth, January 8
1836-August 11, 1907

.

(6] Andrew Sudduth (bom April 26, 1821 <ied after the 1880 Greenville County census)
Andrew Sudduth was 4 ifelong resident of Greenville District/County. He married Mary Fllen
Turner, a native of Greenville District, who was born about 1831, She died after the 1880
Greenville County census. They were parents of 2 large family of children

[7] Elizabeth Sudduth (born Feb. 4, 1822 died after the 1870 Greenville ¢ AUNTY COnsus)
From the 1850, 1860, and 1870 Greenville censuses, 1t appears that Elizabeth was the unwed
mather of three daughters. The name and birth date of the oldest was recarded in the source
record along with the chikiren of Fielding Sudduth: Aanette Suddith born Mar. 24, 1843,

(8] John C. Sudduth (born Mar. 5, 1826 died after the 1880 Okubbeha County, Mississippi census)
One J. C. Suddeth, age 44, b. SC, shows up m the 1870 census of Oktibbeha County, Miss., in
hh 535/525 with Starkville P.O. His oldest child was age 4, 2 bov named Pig. His wife Sarah,
age 34, b. NC, appeared to have been married earhier as indicated by three children in the
houschold with surname Fowler, ages 13, 11, and 8. In the 1880 Oktibbeha census one John
Suduth, age 58, b. SC, was enumerated with 2 13 year son named Pig and with another son
named Fielding, 10 additon 1o two other sons. His father’s birthplace was stated to be Virginia
[here can be no doubt that this John C. Sudduth belongs to Fielding and Rachel Sudduth. A
20 year Mussie Fowler was listed as John's step-daughter, confirmmng that bis wife Sarah was first
married to 2 Mr. Fowler. Her name in 1880 was recorded as Sarah W, Suduth and her age was
45, b. NC.  Contrary 1o the source document, John Sudduth was not killed n the Crvil War

Uppor Sonth Carndies Gonesiegy ¢ | lstory, November X006, Vol XX, Nao 4

147

[91 Nancy Sudduth Henson (born Jan. 27, 1829-died Sept 28, 1907, Greenville County, SC)

Nancy matried Oliver Petry Henson, a native of Greenville County, who was born about 1832.
The household 972/ 972) of Loyd and Rachel Henson in the 1850 Greenvulle census shows
ason Obver, age 18.  In the 1870 Greenville census Nancy was head of househaold 2057205,
Highland Township, consisting of herself and three children, suggesting that her husband was
a casualty of the Civil War. Indeed, the service record for O. P. Henson, & private mn Co. D,
16th Reg't, SC Inf, states he was “killed by the enemy at Atlanta Ga August 31/64". Nancy was
buried in the Plessant Hill Baptist Church Cemetery, Greenville County.

[10] Peter Carr Sudduth (born Apr. 27, 1831 ched Apnil 21, 1889, Greenville County, 5C)
On his tombstone in the Pleasant Hill Baptist Church Cemetery, 1 is inscribed that Peter Carr
Sudduth was in Co. 1D 16th Reg’t SC Inf CSA. He married Deborsh Jane Crsin, her matden
mame being supplied by the death certificate (SC, 1930, #29917) of her daughter Enma
Sudduth. The 1850 Greenville census shows a daughter Jane, listed at age 13, in the houschaold
of Samuel and Chardotte Crain. Deborsh Jane Crain Sudduch died after the 1900 Greenville
census (Chick Springs Township, bh 76/82). Her birth date then was listed as August, 1834.

[11] Margaret Sudduth Bamett (born Mar. 5, 1833-died October 17, 1903, Greenville Co., 5C)
Margaret, youngest deughter of Fielding Sudduth, married Ebenezer Bamett. Both ate buried
in the Ebenezer-Welcome Baptist Cemetery in Greenville County. His tombstone inscription
reads as follows: Eben B. Barnett/ Sept 25, 1834/ March 22, 1905. This couple had issue.

[12] Jasper Newton Sudduth (born Mar. 5§, 1837-died April 5, 1924, Greenville County, SC)
‘The wife of Jasper Newton Sudduth was Flizabeth Catherine Odom. According to her death
certificate, she was the danghter of James and Mary Pennington Odom. From the same
document, her date of birth was Juoe 8, 1841 and she died July 3, 1923. By their separate death
certificates, both are buried in Pleasant Hill Baptist Church Cemetery. They had issve.

[13] Rheuben Sudduth (horn Jan. 1, 1823/1824(7)-died December 18, 1907, Greenville County, SC)
Reuben Sudduth was listed out of chronological order in our source document, which appears
to have been transcribed from an eardier record. It i possible that the transcriber accidentally
left him out and also forgot to record his date of birth. Reuben and his wife Nancy Hester
Moon Sudduth are buried in their private cemetery on Pleasant Hill Road in upper Greenville
County. The date of birth on her tombstone (May 20, 1822) agrees well with the May 1822 date
recorded on the 1900 census of Highland Township, Greenville County; she died April 4, 19140,
Reuben’s inscription reads as follows: Jan 1, 1817 /Dec 18, 1907. This is at odds with his 1900
census record which histed his birth date as January 1819, Neither of these dates can be
reconciled with the 1830 census record for Fielding Sudduth, which indicstes that he had only
one son in the 10 to 15 age group; that slot woukl have been taken by Alexander. The census
ages recorded for Reuben in 1870 (47) and 1880 (57} unply that he was boen in 1823, There 15
a slot between Flizabeth (Feb. 1822) and John (March 1826) into which Reuben’s birth date
would fit easly.
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: DOMINION OVER THE EARTH
VB Cherokee Cessions, State Bounty and Land Grants, and the Settlement of
Pendleton District, South Carolina
By Sharon Gayle
1765 Sterling La, Lewisville, TX 75067 email: sfpayle75067@vahoo.com

its settlement as 2 progression of cession, possession, and organization. The Cherokees ceded

the territory, whites moved in and, later, formed a cvil community called Pendleton District.
The hustorians are not wrong. Yet, social and political issues in play during early settlement in this part
of South Carolina were more complex than this neat and hoear timeline would suggest. This complexity
often leads to confusion for the family researcher who wishes 1o place his or her ancestors into the
context of regional history.

A survey of the litersure on the history of Pendleton District revealed conflicting dates for the
cession of the larger portion of Cherokee lands. Multiple sources, claimed that the territory was under
Cherokee control until 1785. Other writers clsimed that 1777 was the vear of cession.’ The conflicting
dates made it difficult to know when white settlers actually arrived in the region and whether these carly
settlers possessed Jegal status 1o live there. Resolving this conflict was 2 substantial, but necessary, detour
from family history.

There is fragmentary evidence that a few white families moved into the region a5 eardy as 1777,
However, the earhiest recond of & land grant within this former Cherokee territory was dated December,
1781 when John E. Calboun was awarded 1,878 acres on Twelve Mile River.? It would be another three
years before the state would create grant programs expressly designed to promote settlement there and
anothet five years before the region had « name. As a civil entity, Pendleton District was not organized
untl 1789, Two treaties made with the Cherokee and two South Carolina land grant programs
contributed to its formation. These events and related documents, along with contemporary accounts
of the region were examined to gam an understanding of the time and place. He wpefully, these findings
help clanify what has been reported elsewhere.

In many respects, to settle that part of Scuth Carolina was to become a mimer’s canary. In the
years between 1777 and 1785, the region was a “no-man’s land.” This was not from lawlessness and
not because whites were forbidden to settle there, but because it was still disputed territory. Finding a
consensus among historians for the date of cession by the Cherokee was & challenge. Thus, it seemed
necessary to examme the treaties, themselves, and contemporary journals for an answer 10 the question
of cession. Ultimately, the answer was more complex than anticipated. The body of sources was
expanded to include & detatled report of Cherokee cessions published by Chardes C. Royee® in 1883-84,

Wmmg about the formation of Pendleton District, South Carolina, historians generally describe

McFall 1953, p. 27; Saapson 1978, p. 10; Sheriff (n. d.); o Ramwey 1858 (orginally published i 1809}, p. 124; Claytoa 1985,
P 105 Busha 20061, p. 9; Rogens and Taylor 1994, p. 50,

* Calboun 1781, This stue docment also indicated that, by 1781, Gen. Andrew Pickens and several others had 240 removed
10 the region “shove the Ancient Indian Boundary Line.™ However, a3 of pubbeatson, 80 record has been fonnd 1o mdicate
if these mdividuale recetved geants for land within the segion poor o 1784

' Royce was emploged 25 an ethoologist t the Burean of Amencan Ethoology, 1 department of the Smithsonien lastitution
from 1883 1o 1888

Usper Sonth Carvitna Gesaalegy & Hictory, Nowember 206, Vol XX, No. 4

149

Postions of this teport were later published by order of Congress in the U, 5. S/ 52 as HR. Report
No. 736. ) .

( Royce's report was illuminating. It helped to explain why, even today, confusion exists over
when the northwest region of South Carolina was ceded by the Cherokee. In the mtroduction, 'hf' editor
described the difficulties encountered in determining boundaries established by the various treaties with
the Cherokee.

[in] some cases the ceasions were inperfectly seconded; tn the greater sumber of cases
the cessions were made i advance of the execution of trustworthy surveys ancd oaps,
v that the benndarses of the coded terstery wers indefinite jexaphass, rone).

[he treaties of DeWitt’s Commner, in 1777, and Hopewell, in 1785, certaialy stand as 4 testament
to the problems described in Royee's report. After the treaty of DeWit's Corner was ug:’ncd many
Cherokee either did not accept the new treaty boundary or understood the terms mfchndy. It was not
until 1797—well after the ratification of both treaties—that the boundary was physically run and the
fear of Cherokee mids began to diminish. To appreciate tbc complexitics involved, one must f:ircuz
stmultaneously on issues of economics {personal and political), personalities of key paanunft:l a1
political exigencies of trying to build a government that was, itself, in constant flux. All these factors
resalted in imperfect sgreements that required amendment over the following decades.

Treaty of DeWitt’s Corner—20 May 1777

; titled, b T3 of Peace and Frisndship, DeWitt's Cotner was different from all other
treaties :;:‘f;mﬂybdmm l}}c (lhcrr?{e; and South Carolina. 'l‘hz: language of the three previous treatics
conferred an equal and sovereign status to both parties. DeWitt’s Corner, by contrast, was couched in
terms of bitter animosity and conquest. Beyond the peace-making component, the treaty was designed
- MELCy » do Justice.”

- f'x“?:;lm cm;:n:l tt(hx fc;‘nn of goods for sale to the Cherokee who grcath sufft‘:md Qs 4 rcaixh of
the military’s “scorched earth” policy the previous summer. The justice—mn _thc minds of the South
Carolina delegation, at least—came in the form of the Cherokee ?cktg.m'lccigxng that they Wﬁg
waged war against the citizens of South Carolina and that South Carohna, cmbodn:d by th; mthm :
Continental army, had utterly defeated them in battle. Morcover, by bmldmg and maintaining Ft.
Rautledge at the site of the Cherokee town of Baseneca, South Carolina partisans effectively possessed

1ot
o C‘mrpi};ln:ghcds:ﬂ l::;:lmrg(uf sti passideti’, the treaty declared that all Indian land to the

' i today. The smplcity of the
‘R 1975, p. bv. Royce mapped the Cherokee cession boundanes, which mup 1 sl usec , ¥
ma‘;:r::nbcrmzexhg}xcmwmmmﬂwmuhﬂ&ffxmmwmmmbcmndanct

IRgping ' p 1 £ the more violent opponents of the
'T Canoe, a young wartior of the Chezokee matson, was often sdentified 25 one o
}“""'hadtmPg:nmgynundmaboft}wmgomwmmw&mrdmnhmddmﬂa:cmw
contrary to the DeWint trexty text. A journal of the acgotutions rtpmt‘ad statements of two Eradxm’ regandeng mm
Ihtxh;pmtmvrmmnuﬂfxtwnotmdym&mh(.mhumd&c(})emlef,\tuon;nd-.-m(‘

between Cherokee snd Cherokes

* This phrase, which mesns “as you possess,” 1 used m nternational low 1o sgnify that the parties t & treaty 252 10 retin
pc»oc\‘w.-n of what they have scquined by force duneg the war
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Unscaye Mountaims was forfested and ceded to the people of South Carolina. Inhabitants, still living in

the lower towns, could remain long enough to harvest already planted crops but they were required to

move northwest of Oconee Mountsin’ once these crops were harvested. Those mhabitants of the
Middle settiements—between Oconee and Unacaye Mountains—were permitted to remain in place only
by political mdulgence.

I'he Unacaye Mountaing {aks, “Unicot™) ate located in present day Tennessee. The mountain
range forms, in part, the boundary between Tennessee and North Carolina. It has been reported
clsewhere that DeWitt's Corner established the boundary between Cherokee land and Scuth Carolina
along the top of Oconee Mountain. But the text of the rreaty reads differently”. The oft-described
“nartow strip”™ was legally part of this ceded tetritory, as well as part of present-day North Carolina.

[t 1s worth noting that among the principle South Carolina delepates st DeWitt’s Comer were
May. Andrew Wilhamson and Willizm Hentry Drayton. It was Williamson who led the miling thundeding
through the Cherokee villages the previous summer destroying everything along his path. Drayton was
the one who proposed the “scorched easth™ policy implemented by Willamson.

An ambitious, controversial figure throughout his life, Drayton was a poor choice to negonate
peace with anyone. His own allies distrusted him and conflict partnered with him wherever he went. He
had a history of trying to enlarge the domains of his family and of South Carolina.” Why the State
legislature would have chosen Drayton for a diplomatic task is a mystery. In his biography, Krawezynski
offered 2 theory: Chatleston leaders sent Drayton on this mission to keep Dmayton away from
Charleston and far away from them.™

A year earlier, Drayton declared that he woukd not be satisfied until the Cherokee were removed
“beyond the mountains.™' Given Drayton’s tendencies, it was quite probable that he was the suthor
of that section of the treaty whereby all land to the Unacaye was forfeited by the Cherokee. The fact that
North Carolina, also claiming part of that region, might object 10 the cession...well, that thought did
not seem worth consideration for & man of Drayron’s ambitions.'* **

— ———

" Ocones Mountam ts presently known as Station Mountem, [t bes nosthwest of Oconee Station in present-day Oconee Co.,
SO (wee Royee 1975, p. 293

" Extracts of the two treaties rebated 10 the boundaries and cessons appear tn Appendix A

" Cherokee lends were not the only tirgets of Drayton’s mtrignes. Drayton’s attendance at DeWiar's Comer briefly snterrapted

his campaign 10 annex Georga to South Carolina (Gibbes 1857, p. 77). Entaged, the povernor of Georgia placad 3 bounty
on Drsyton’s head.

" Krawezmsk: 2001
" Gibbes 1857; p. 29.

¥ Not often conssdersd, bt well established, i the fact that Georga, North Carclios and South Caeolina had ongomng
boundary deputes which tnchaded thes region. Having the Cherokee offically cede the territory betwesn Oconee and
Unacaye Mounteas undouhiedly strengthened South Carolina’s position i sny negotiations with the other sextes. The
confhicts cenmnly worked o the advantage of settiers hving i the area who dtemately declared themselyes ressdsnt of
whatever state surted them at the moment. Two SC sixiates effectively took South Caroling out of the confit. The first,
pamed m 1786, reserved all land beyord Oconee Monatun to the Cherokee. The second, passed in 1787, cedad the westeen
hands 10 the United States. North Carohios and Georgia contioned o lay claim 10 the tegion sad lster weat to war over o

" In 1785, Claef Com Tassel cecalled the discnssaons 1t DeWitt's Commer, He charged that these white men {mesuing
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The Cherokee headsmen negotiated perhaps the best peace that they c« ml(}, but it was less than
they desired. Hectored into ceding the northwest region of the state, eight ( ,hcr::_ﬂ&sc headsmen,
mprcmtmg the entire Nation, signed the treaty. Once ratified by the Stare, the lanfl iggally belonged to
South Caroling—albeit with an indefinite boundary line. Moreover, 2 517’ablc contingent of tribesmen
viewed the forfeiture as robbery and slow extermination of their P«xpk. T'he legititnacy ()'f‘ the cession
was still being debated among the Cherokee in 1829.* and conflicts crmnm'mq beyond 1785.

The Treaty at DeWitt was ambiguous in its language and comb?m'c in its temperament. It was
indicative of the men who dictated its terms. This is worth bearing thtg m"mm('] bct:'a‘u«c thxg ,wu thc'
document that made the Bounty and Land Grant programs pl.m,‘iﬁ)lc in 1 84, The Treaty of Peax ana
Friendskip failed miserably 10 accomplish either peace or friendship. Hostilities between the two cultf%l:“!
continued, most notably in North Carolina, but fragmentary evidence also suggests that conthets
occursed in South Carolina as well.

Treaty of Hopewell—28 November 1785

Hopewell was the first treaty formed between the newly minted United States and the ( Ihcmk‘ce
Nation. The place name was fitting whete the two natoos would seek the promise of & lasting r;cn;;
Located st present day Clemson, SC, an oak stands on th:? spot where the treaty was signed. n’ %
opening remarks, Chief Corn Tassel declared to all that, “this land we are now on, is the land we were

fighting for.”"

This time, the American delegation was led by men well regarded by Cherokee and by
Americans: Cen. Andrew Pickens and Benjamin Hawkins.! Pickens was 4 hero of the R-:vd;ztwmrv
War and a one-time Indian teader. He knew well the horrors that mmﬂu:.m between rcd and whx’tc could
cause. His wife was a survivor of the massacre at Long Canes in 1760. He rode wﬂbﬂ( ytant ;qforczs
against the Cherokee in 1761 and with Williamson’s forces durmg the «ummcr_uf 1776. By 1781, he
established 2 home at the ceater of the ceded territory within sight of 2 lower ( ‘herokee town that he

in 1776,
i t;;c(:::::; l}nlalwkms was an experienced interpreter and dipl(m,mt‘ .Hawkim too had wcfzicd
honombly during the Revolutionary War as an mterpreter for George Washington. Later, he served 1o

Drsevton xad colleagnes) were not interested tn pesce, only in { herokee hand. Rhetorical saalyss of the m::ivnmki hkﬁ::
vield the ssme conclosoa.  Ofien, the more smportant isues and agrecments between nations are plac Mmm
begmming of diplomatic and legal documents. Note where the word “boundary appears 1 the WO treatics « i \M
a2 the 1777 treaty, the ad cession appeared in Article I, but boundary ines in the Treaty at Hopewell appeared o

v

¥ Outalasss 1829

* Grant 1980, p. 15

* Hawkms 1785

" Reooth men wete hosored with Chesokee names. Pickens was known ss Skpqgeats or Wizard Owl Hawkins was given & more

clabomate Chervkee same, [dnchainb st chominbongs, when translated meant “Beloved mao of the four natioes.” Withn
the (herokee culture, the term “beloved™ was 1 dessgowion of very high esteem and often referted to lenders of the trbe.
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Congress as a senator from North Carohna. At Hopewell, his translation and diplomatic skills were well
employed. In addition to those duties, he served as journalist, recording the daily exchanges between
the Cherokee headsmen and the U, S. delegation. In his journal, Hawkins recorded Chief Corn Tassel's
opening statement. In the margin, he annotated that Hopewell was the possession of Gen. Pickens, land
ceded at DeWitt's Comer.” Hawkms seemed to recognize the underlying issue that made peace
mpossible in 1777.

We do not know what conversations tmnspired between Hawkins and Pickens at the end of that
first day. Pickens, himself, may have recognized the implications of Comn Tassel’s statement. However
he became aware of the issue, the General acted upon it. The following day, Pickens provided the
headsmen with & surveyed map of the region. He requested that they dtaw upon it those territories
which they reserved to themselves. This, the headsmen did. After days of meetings, discussions, and
debates, the headsmen finally scquiesced to the reality that the northwestern part of South Caroling, as
well as part of North Carolina would not be returned to Cherokee control. By the end of 1784, well
before negotiations at Hopewell, 2 flood of grants had been tssued for Jand within that region by South
Caroling. The United States would not remove these white settlers. The U.S. negotiarors claimed that
it would be “roo difficult” to remove them.

Hawkins did not record what those difficulties were. In fact, specifics may not have been offeted
10 the Cherokee, thus explaining the question one headsman asked: Why Congress, who succeeded in
removing King George and his army from thirteen colonies, could not remove a few white people from
Chetokee lands? If there was an American reply, Hawkins did not recond it. But we know the histary
and we know the answer.

Despite the ties that Andrew Pickens had with South Carolina and that Benjamin Hawkins with
North Carolina, at Hopewell, they represented only the Federal government. In 1785, under the Articles
of Confederation, the federal government was very weak. It had power to make treaties and 1o settle
disputes hetwwrr states, but neither Congress nor the President had direct power over what happened
within any given state, even if it touched upon foreign relations. The U, 8, government could not force
these states to rescind grants issued by their governments.™ In the end, the Cherokee had to allow for
those white settlements.

Again, the summit of Oconee Mountain was used as 4 reference point for the boundary between
the Cherokee and South Carolina. The boundary description was only shghtly better defined as a result
of the map marked by the Cherokee. Contrasted with the eight headsmen who sipned in 1777, the
Treaty st Hopewell was signed by a litany of 36 headsmen. At last, peace would be established between
Americans and the Cherokee. Well, that was the hope.

Although the majority of both sides accepted the terms established at Hopewell, elements from
both sides continued to instigate conflicts in forms of raids and trespass. Additionally, illegal crossings
often occurred from ignorsnce of where the boundary physically lay. More than a decade would pass

* Indhan affaurs 1832

" 1n 1788, after the creunion of the U, 8. Constitution, but before North Carolinas had ratified 1, the US. Senste tssued a
Proclemation calling for the removal of whites who continued 10 breach the houndarnies defined be the 1785 treaty, “mosthy™,
the proclamation read, from people in North Carchioa. Ax that tae, Congress dad not have statutory power of enforcement
S0, the prochamation was tantamount to nothtng more than « stern verbal seprmand.  Even afier the mufication of the

Constitution, the Cheroker continued 10 tmploce each sitting Pressdent to enfotce treaty boundanies wul the Cherokee
resnoval of the 1830
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before the boundary lines woukd be marked. Thus, peace within the region remained fmgilf until the
opening of the 19* century. South Carolina was still building and garrisoning forts along its frontier
border as Jate as 1792,

Land Grant Act, passed 21 March 1784,

By 1784, South Carolina faced monumental debt, deflated currency, and continued confhicts
with the Cherokee. The federal government agreed to assume most ut: the financial burden 1n exchange
for relingquishing lands to the west. South Carolina did cede somne teratory, but state Jeaders recognized
that cheaper land in the federal territories would deplete the state’s population, leaving fewer tax payers
1> suppott the State Treasury and fewer militiamen to counter still raiding Indians.

To address these issues, the South Carolina Genenal Assembly devised 2 means of increastng
the number of property owners, and 1ts mherent tax base. At the same time, the State could enhance
secutity along its borders by rewarding certain officers and gxhhcm with land in lieu of rmmct.m
pemxt;n.” To qualified vetenans, 200 acres were granted—in for unp/r and free ."f all costs—along the
longest hotder with the Cherokee Nation. The region between the Keowee and T tmlgo.ijcrs {Oconee
Co.) was reserved for the Bounty Grant program for a period of six moaths.” The process of
spplication utilized the same infrastructure developed for the Land Grant Program. !

For everyone else, the Land Geant Act of 1784 provided a means of acquiring land far bc-l(,w.J
fair market value. Much of the language in the statute focused upon the process of granting land and
establishing fees. Beyond making apphication and paying those fees, the grantec was r'equm:d to settle
and cultivate the land within two years of teceiving the grant and to occupy that land for at least twelve
months before it could be sold, divided or gifted to another. To create s bartier agamst land
& i te also set a limit of 640 acres for each applicant.
pccuhnf(;?e :ah:c?::‘u prime property was intense. Passed into law on ) of' March, the first grants mxitj‘y
this statute were signed on May 21, precisely two months after passage.” The act was amended several
times over the next few years, to improve collection of fees, to counter land speculation and to reduce

' fraud which occurred anyway.
g4 P"“’(n)?:lrf(;fc next eight years, more than 16,600 tracts were surveyed nndlgr:qts mucd throughout
the state. OF that number, nearly 7,000 were for land in Ninety six District, ‘mcludmg :hc fmr
Cherokee territoty. Within the first six months of passage, the State issued an csnmated 2,272 grants in
Ninety-six District. Of these grants, this author (Sharon Gayle) has recently c?smm!cd that one-thied
were situated m the tegion later to become Pendleton District. The rate at which settlers entered nto

b ) 3 3 the Vacant
"South Carohas General Assembily An ACT for establishtag the Mode and ¢ xnhxx{otf\tﬂ‘ﬁﬂlaﬂﬁ(xmm '
E.u;h within this State 1784; See aleo: Saath Cornling Gasenal Assowbdy AN ORDINANCE Far soowring 3o e ( Yloers omd 5 addiers
/ﬂ'vj.‘nd(m&alM!m.ad:hnﬁanu&ﬂ@d&tbwl%(mmwh(# Bnaf.;u‘(ﬂ
Mowrs, and 1 the Ofars of the Naawy of fhus ssate, the Lawds promeised 30 thevw by the Congress, and the Lagisiatuer of thés Suate 1784

" The General Assembly osiginally reserved this seggon of former Chernker termtony i 1778, The Ordinance of 1784 deboed
the process as besng the same xs for geners] bund grants

® The nct incduded & dause that extablished & 2-month moratocnm o the iwwng of warmats for survey. The statute
c:ph-mddmmumdnwurqwtdmouirrtocmfyoffxubmmmebomﬂdmdnhmmddm
the plats. Precisely at the end of that peniod, Andrew Pickens xad Jobn E Calbhoun wete among the first grantees, both
recerving grants of 640 acres on May 21, 1784
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the region seems almost incomprehensible. In 1786, oaly twenty families were reported living there.
By 1788, the population had grown to an estimated 1,600 persons.”® By the time of the first U, S,
Census, Pendleton District was home to 1,433 families with a total population of 9,568.

Marking of the Boundary Lines
While Hopewell clatified the boundary between South Carolina and Cherokee, it remained
unmarked. Enforcing restrictions of an unmarked boundary proved problematic. So in 1796, George
Washington commissioned Benjamin Hawkins™ and Andrew Pickens 1o run the lines between the two
nations. On this mission, they were joined by several Cherokee headsmen to assure evervone of a fair
and accurate survey. Upon recommendation by Pickens, Hawkins hired “two discrete, honest men of
this frontier, acquainted with surveying” to accompany them in marking the boundaries. ™

On Aprl 1, 1797, representatives from the 1.8, and the four nations hegan the process of
measuring and marking U.S./Indian boundaries. As the survey team moved forward in its task,
problems arose. Despite the fact that General Pickens and Hawkins were both present at the Hopewell
negottations, the boundary description was still too vague. In his journal, Benjamin Hawking noted the
ambiguity. In 1797, he wrote:

‘I}:ﬁe remans 10 be run abowt 13 mules m this State [South Carolina) 10 the North

Carolina boundary. There is some ambiguity i the part of the line from that boundary

25 expeessed i the Treaty, “thence nosth 10 & paint.” How fat nosth s thix pomt?®
Moreover, petitionens from both sides tried to persuade the commissioners to survey around land claimms
violating treaty boundaties. The commissioners” reply was firm. The signed treaty was the sole
consideration.™ At one mile intervals, the surveyors carved “U.S." on one side and “C.” on the other

* Caty Gameow (Chatleston) 4 Mar 1788 and Sies Gasss of 5. €, 28 Jen 1793, quoted ta Bacot 1923, p. 690

" Histarson! Conans Brawsr 2004; This increase in population transgdes roughly

e 2004, T y mio 31 people moving oto Pendleton 0
exch week between 1786 and 1788 Compared with the increase between 1“%m1m(fmmdrutcofumuum
80 people per week eatering the region

* Washogton appomwd Haowkns a5 Chief Agem for Indien Affaies south of the Ohio. The runming of boundary lnes for
hoth the Cherokee and Creek nutions was hes first magor assignment n that postion, Hawking joumals showed & remarkalie
dexlcation 1o enﬁ::;mg the uﬂt::mmic between the United States and the lndian Natioas. While, st tines, he scemed
patronizing toward netives, he & geostne regatd for their tighes nuder treaty laws, : 2

authorities any white man who violited Indmn nghts snd mmcmngh i e e

® Grant 1980, pp. 105, 143 In b pournal, Hawkons sdentified these men as Joseph s :
s 2 143, Whetner and John Clark Kilpatrick. Borh
;::i::him Peadieton Destrict, each serving s Deputy Surveyor on a large number of plats for kend 30 96 Ditstrict, luter,
an Dastract.

. ..('mfn 1980, p. 14. The weaty that Hawkins was refecencing was the one concluded July 2, 1791 and runfied m Febrosey
1792 ﬁm treaty dud not code any new termory 1o South Caroling snd, for that resson, n.aenculh 0ot discussed as part of
South Catolins hstory. The treaty, however, was the first one 10 dictate that boundasies would be physically ran between
the two peoples. The treaty resterated the “Sonth Carolins boundary™ with 2 small change i text at it intersected with the
SCNC boundary. Thes toesty served Hawkins as the “soad map” for surveying the Cherokee 3C hae

* Thd,

Uper Sanesh Clarviima Gannalegy & History, November 2006, Vol. XX, No. 4

155

side of trees marking the route. The boundary was thus fixed and the survey task was conchuded that
June®

For some settlements, most notably in Tennessee, the sow physically marked boundary meant
that white families had to remove to the U, 8. side.™ But the Tennesseans were not the only group
affected. Upon learning that scveral tracts had been surveyed and grants issued for lands within
(hetokee domain, the South Caroling General Assembly passed a statute in March, 1786, voiding all
grants, sales, and other conveyances for land beyond the Oconee Moxntain boandary G ¥ Affected
settlers were given time to harvest already planted crops, but they were removed in compliance with the
treaty. For this reason, researchers may want to examine where in Pendleton County ancestral properties
were located. If such property was situated near the Indian line, a search for a petition of refief from
the State may be warmnted.

Surveying and marking the boundaties apparently helped to achieve a peaceful co-existence
better than any document. In 1792, South Carolina was still building forts and posting militia along the
frontier line to deal with threats of raids. By 1799, raids had abated sufficiently that these forts were
abandoned, excepting Oconee Station, which became a trading post with the Nation.

Summary

Regarding the initial questions of when was the tesritory ceded by the Cherokee and what status
did these very early settlers have to the land they possessed, the answer was not straight-forward. The
multiplicity of treaties and legislative acts make it clear that the issue was a complex one. The Treaty at
DeWitt's Corner, by law, conferred sovereignty over the Jand upon South Carolina. The Treaty at
Hopewell, achieved & peace between the two nations—albeit & fragile one. The Act of 1784 opened the
region to mass settlement, even while there existed a teeritorial dispute between South Carolina and the
Cherokee Nation. A few families were living in the region by 1781, but many waited until 1786 to take
possession of their granted lands.

The treaty at Hopewell was imperfect due to the nature of the relationship between state and
federal governments under the Articles of Confederation. In the end, South Carolina did rescind a few
grants issued in what remained Cherokee land. Even so, treaty violations continued to be committed
by mdividuals on both sides. Diplotnacy and rule of law, however, won out over war and retslation.
Marking the boundary in 1797 did more to establish peace than any document or event which preceded
it.

We can imsgine that, on both sides, the worst sufferers were often those most moocent of any
wrong, Pioneers who applied for land grants in 1784 were innocent of deliberate encroachment. With
the exception of the Treaty at DeWitt’s Coener, South Caroling seemed to genuinely want peace with

* Royce 1975, p. 40 fo.

¥ Grant 1980, p. 153

" South Cazolina Genesal Assembly 1786

¥ Jonrnats of the Senste of SC, 1786, p. 277. This wtatote did not pass without controversy. There was up-coustry opposttion

10 reserving the “marrow stip” 10 the Cherokee. Although South Carolina did not kegally ro-cede the territory 10 the
Cherokee, the statute, by ity natose, made cosion 2 reahty. Undocumented whites coukd not cross the boundary with

mapusity
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the Cherokee and fair trade for all. However, the failure of leaders of state and federal gOVernments to
mark rerritorial boundaries and enforce the treaties exacerbated friction between the two peoples. To
date, we have seen only fragmentary evidence of those conflicts and the constant dangen for the setders
who lived i this part of South Carolina, The massacre at Long Canes, which became transfixed in
collective memory, was not repeated in Pendleton. Yet, to deny that such did not bappen is to ignore
the sign-posts of conflict that cleatly existed. Individual stoies of those who suffered from raids and
murders duting this period of settlement, if they can ever be rediscovered, are presently a mystety.

APPENDIX A

Author’s note: The following are excerpis from the Treaties describing the cession and bonndary between South
Carolina and the Cherokse Nation

Treaty at DeWit’s Comer — May 20, 1777
Art: 1%, The Cherokee Nation acknowledge, That the Troops that during the last Summer repeatedly
defeated their forces; victotiously penetrated through their lower Towns, Middle Settlements and
Vallies; and quietly and unopposed built, beld and continue to occupy, the Fort at Esennecea: thereby
disaffect and maintain, the conquest of all the Cherokee land Ezstward of the Unacaye Mountain,
and to and for their People, did acquite possess, and yet continue to bold in and over the said
lands, all and singular the rghts incidental to conguest, and the Cherokee Nation in
conscquence thereof do cede the said lands to the said People—The People of South
Carolina—{emphasis, mine)
Art: TIY. South Catolina will immediately send a supply of goods into the Cherokee Nation. and
settlements for sale, and pennit the Cherokee during their good behavior to inhsbit the Middle
Settlements and Vallevs westward of the highest part of Ocunnce Mountaia but they shall not
beyond a Line extended Southwest or Nocth Fast actoss the highest pact of Ocunnee Mountaio
proceed or Advance without permission from the Commanding Officer ar Fort Rutledge
lemphasis, mine], to apply for which, one runner may at suy time be sent by the Cherokees. PROVIDED
nevertheless that during this present year, the Cherokees may raise, gather and remove the corn they
have Planted on the east side of Occunne Mountain,

Treaty at Hopewell - November 28, 1785

ARTICLE IV. The boundary allotted to the Cherokees for their hunting grounds, between the said
Indians and the citizens of the United States, within the limits of the United States of America, is, and
shall be the following, viz. Beginning at the mouth of Duck river, on the Tennessee: thence running
northeast to the ridge dividing the waters running into Cumberland from those running into the
Tennessee; thence eastwardly along the said ridge to a north-east line to be run, which shall strike the
niver Cumberand forty miles above Nashville; thence along the said line to the river; thence up the saxd
river to the ford where the Kentucky road crosses the river; theace to Campbell's line, near Cumberdand
gap; thence to the mouth of Claud's creek on Holstein; thence to the ¢ himneytop mountain; thence to
Camp-creck, near the mouth of Big Limestone, on Nolichuckey; thence a southerly course six miles to
2 mountain; thence south to the North-Carolina line; thence to the South-Caroling Indian
boundaty, and along the same south-west over the top of the Oconee mountain till it shall strike
Tugaloo river jemphasis, mine}; thence 2 direct line to the top of the Currohee mountain; thence to
the head of the south fork of Oconee rver.
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DEATH NOTICE OF COLONEL BENJAMIN HAWKINS, REV. WAR OFFICER
Source: Chardeston Conrter, issue of Wednesday, June 19, 1816, p-2,c0l 3
Another Revolutionary Patriot Gone !

It will be seen by the following extract of a letter from 2 gentleman in the Creek Agency, dated
June 10, 1816, to another in this city, that the venerable HAWKINS, Agent for Indian Affairs, is
no more ! The writer says, “It is with sincere sorrow [ announce to you the death of our
mestimable friend Colonel BENJAMIN HAWKINS; he breathed his last on the evening of the 6 th
inst. at 8 o'clock. I was called to visit him, but my efforts were entirely ineffectual. | remained
with him until he expired.” ... Sanaxnah Rapwcbisce, 15 16 inst

{Editor’s note: The second paragraph of the origmal notice contained an eulogy of Col. Hawking “... as 2 citizen,

a public servant, and « munister of humanity.” He was the same Benjamin Hawkins mentioned repeatedly m the
preceding article.]

- - -
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OBITUARY OF JOHN KING, REV, WAR VET., OF SPARTANBURG DISTRICT
Contributed by Joe B. Burgess, a descendant, PO Box 6588, Spartanburg, SC 29304
Source: Charleston Courier, ssue of Friday April 8, 1842, p. 2, col. 6
[From the Spartanburg Journal, 2d mst. {Apnl 2, 1842)]
Amsther Rewolsitonary Patriot has falien. — Mr. John King departed this life on Friday evening, the 25th ult.
at about 5 o’clock, P.M. at his restdence near Rich Hill in this district, having lived 84 years.
The subject of this notice was barn in Lousss County, Virginia, on the 12th of January, 1758.

He entered the lists of his country’s defenders, m hs 18th year, and attached himself to the Vigina
Regiment. His fidelity, his patriotic devotion and mflexible courage, procured his removal fmnf the
Virginia Regiment to the highly responsible, and honorable station, of lifeguard to the Great
Washington; in which capacity be served his country, amidst all the varied scenes of that eventful period.
He was the first to hail the approach of immortal Steuben, to the tent of Washington, and under the
instruction of that great friend of freedom, received much confidence in bim. o the memaorial .bmk-a
fought at Brandywine, Germantown, and Monmouth C.H. he shared largely in the perils to which th.c
friends of the republic were exposed. He was sent with Lafayette, through Virginia, and though his
person was the special object of pursuit by the British, one of whose officers was heard to say “the boy
shoukd not escape him,” he nevertheless made good his escape, and the next intelligence r.hnt the enemny
had of John King he was with Washington, dealing out destruction to the enemies of his country. He
was often heard to regret that when Cornrwallis delivered up his swozd at Yorktown, he was prevented
from participating in the joy of the occasion by severe illness, which had well neigh cost his life. In as
much as he had witnessed the reverses of his General, he ahways spoke of it as a great bereavement, ths‘.z
he was prevented from witnessing his success at that moment. Mr. King migrated from Virgiom to t?us
District whete he has enjoyed the peace and quiet of domestic life for the last half century. He married
Sarah Lemaster of this District, who still bves to regret for a season the absence of him, with whom she
has so long and so happily lived. He has left 2 large and very respectable family, all of whom sedulously
imnitute the virtues of their amisble progenitor. Always unpretending in his disposition, Mr. King never
asked for an office, but mather choose to gain his living as he gained his liberties, by the sweat of his
brow. Agriculture was his favorire pursuit, by which he eatned a very comfortable competency. His
whole life was characterized by the untiting fondness for pursuing the holy scriptures, to which we can
attribute his happy and peaceful depatture from this world. Mr. King, is perhaps, the last one of the
chosen band, who shared latgely in the confidence of the Great Washington. A very large circle of
friends attended the corpse of the venerable Patriot to his final resting place, the solemmities of which

were doep and imposing.

- . .

OBITUARY OF SARAH LEMASTER (MRS. JOHN) KING
Source: Carolina Spartan, issve of October 24, 1850

Deeparted this life on the first of Oct. nst., Mrs. Sarah King, consort of John King of Revolutionary
memory, aged 76 years and 14 days. Mrs. King (Lemaster) was bormn in Amberst Co., Va., Sept. 17,
1774... came to this country in early life and marmed Mr. King from Louisa Co, Va., in Spartanburg
District on 2 March 1790, They settled nesr Rich Hill where they raised & large family and remained until
thetr death. Mrs. King joined the Methodist Episcopal ( “hurch, and remained & member for 50 years.

» - »
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A SKETCH OF ELIHU SMITH GRIFFIN OF PICKENS COUNTY

Source: The Pickens Semiines, 1ssue of Thursday, June 25, 1891, p. 5, col. 1

Editor’s Note: The lefthand marngin in the macrofiln copy of the ongiosl was demaged and several letrers of
the words on the margin wers TAsIg. Most of the mussing letrers have been supplisd by extrapolation from
context, and they are indicated by boldface font.)

Mz, Griffin was a canddate for County Commissioner of Pickens Coonty.]

Elihu Smith Gnffin was bom at the Gnffin homestead on Rice's Creek four miles south of the county
seat, the 29th day of October, 1837, His father the late Elthu Griffin came o this county from laurtn\
about 1832 and settled ar Rices [Rice’s]. His mother was a daughter of [ohn Gary, of Laurens Coun
The records show that Elihu Griffin was born October the = «d A. . 1800, died March 15t A, D. 18""
aged 76, Mrs, Elizabeth Griffin was born the 19%h of February A, D. 1805, died September the st A.
. 1873, Aped 68 years. The subject of this sketch remained under the paternal roof until he was
twenty one years of war , working on the farm and attending school at Tabor church, where he
acquired a common school education under the tutelage of the late Stephen I, Ketth. In 1859 he went
to Laurens county, where he remained one year. I'hence he weot to Dalion, Ga., in 1969, and was in
business at that place until the “call 1o arms™ in ‘61, At the first sound of “fife and drum™ he offered
his services to his adopted State, entering at lhh:m m Campany I, in Col. 1. W. Avery’s cavalry
regiment known as l’::z- fourth Georgia cavalry, which belonged to the military organization which
fwas] known as “Crews Brigade, Martins Division”. He remained with this command duning the four
years of the war, and was i all the prominent calvary fights participated in by his command. Through
all the ups and downs of army life he came off in good shape, never was scrarched by 2 bullet, but had
his clothing tom by themn several times, nor he was never taken prisaner, did not surrender and hence
got no pamlc In the fall of ‘65 he went to Atkansas and remained there until January 1867, when he
returned to his native State and county. On the 18t day of September of that year he was married 1o
Miss Sallie M., daughter of the late Warren Smith of Liberty township. Mr. Gnffin settled on The
Esghteen [1e., Esghteen Mile Creek] near the Squire Stuth place and began the business of farming and
hived there « « - vears, then moved to the home place at Rice'’s, where he now lives and continues to
farms, Last vear he was called upon to bear the greatest of all afflictions, the loss of his beloved
partner of his joys and sorrows, his wife who had been his helpmeet and companion for twenty-three
vears, who passed away on 26th of September, A, D, 18%), leaving a family of thirteen children 1o their
father’s care. Mr. Griffin is a thorough farmer and has showed 2 handsome competency from his
business. He owns and operates a grist mill, cotton gin and 15 also one of those remarkable men that
can make maoney out 2 steamn saw mill. He has a fine country ressdence - - - - ces, and owns the
Mountain « « « « Hotel in Easley, which is given up to be one of the handsomest hotel sites in the
famous Psedmeont escarpment. He is a prominent Alliance man and has taken an active roll ia the
business of the order, and in its organization in this county, being the president of the of the county
Aliance. He was an active participant in the late “Reform Movement™ that landed Tillman in the
Governor’s [mansion.] ...

[Editor’s note: Here pieces of tape on the okd newspaper make a dozen Haes in the original column
unreadable. We conclude this sketch with the Jast sentence.] If he should carry out his plan of leaving the
farm and maoving to his property in Easley, it would be a loss 1o his neighborhood, but an the other
hand, Easley would add another to her number of progressive citizens.

- L
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OBITUARY AND CHILDREN OF ELIHU SMITH GRIFFIN
Source: Gresmafie News, issue of Tuesday, March 19, 1929, p. 13, col. 8

Funeral services for Elihu Smith Griffin, widely known resident of the Paris Monatam township,
thix county, who died at 11:30 o'clock Sunday night at his home, following a three months” iliness, will
be held this afternoon at 3 o’clock from the First Baptist church, in Liberty. The funeral party will leave
the Mackey Mortuary of on North Main Street at Elford promptly at 1:30 o’clock for Liberty. The
services will be conducted by the Rev. Frank K. Pool.

Mr. Griffin was 2 native of Pickens county, but for many years had Jived in this county, where
he has scores of friends who will learn of his passing with sadness. He was 91 years of age, and despite
his advanced years, was 2 most active person, having during last year engaped in active farming. He was
a Confederate Veteran, having setved for four years during the War Between the States, and was &
member of Camp Pulliam, United Confederate Veterans. During Mr. Griffin’s residence in Pickens
conmty, he served his country as commissioner. He was a member of the Reedy River Baptist Church.

Mr. Griffin was twice married, first to Miss Sarah Elizabeth Smith of Pickens, who preceded him
to the grave some 35 years ago. From this union, the following sons and daughters survive: W.A
Gniffin, of Birmingham, Ala; |.W. Griffin, of Dell, Montang; Mrs. L.O. Latham, and Mrs. G.H.
Hendrix, of Easley; Mrs. W.A.G. Jameson, of Liberty; Mts. S.E. Farr, of Knoxville, Tenn.; Mrs. T.B.
Richey, of Birmingham, Ala.; Miss Kate Griffin, of Atlanta, Ga,; Mrs. C. A. Parkins, Mrs. W.E. Freeman,
Mrs. HLM. Hester and Mrs. W.I). Whitten, all of this city. Mr. Griffin’s second wife was Miss Fmma
Clement, who survives him. He also leaves 33 grandchildren, and great-grandchildren.

The following men are asked to serve as the pall bearers: Don(?) Hendsix, Lewis Hendrix, Vern
Jameson, Richard Hester, Boyce Lathan and Harold Jameson.

The honomry escort will be members of Camp Pulliam United Confederate Veterans.

Using the obitnaty above, census and cemetery reconds, and other ohituaties, it is possible 10 reconstruct this
Gaffin family of siblings as follows:
1, Wilhem E. Geiffin (July 10, 1868-July 24, 1924); m.1 Sallie M. Chambhia (1872-1898)
m.2 Mary C. Goodgion
2, Fula Elizabeth Griffin (Sept. 13, 1869-Mar. 1, 1940); m. Lawrence Orr Lathem (1869-1948)
3 Mary Lillie Griffin (Nov. 11, 1871-May 7, 1955); m. William A. G. Jameson (1862-1935)
4 Warren A. Griffin (Feb. 1872 July 1934); m. Lyda (ca 1885 )
5. Sarah Emily Griffin (March1873- ); m. Stokeley E. Farr (ca 1873- )
6. Cortie Jane Gniffin (Dec. 13, 1874-Sept. 22, 187") m. Charles Allen Parkins (1872-1922)
7. E. Lake Griffin (Mar. 14, 1877-Apnil 28, 1972); m. George Harsison Hendricks (1874-1945)
8 Lela Ada Griffin (Oct. 1879- % m. Thomas B. Richey, {ca 1874~ )
9. Julia Geiffin (July 1881 -Now. 11, 1951); m. William Earnest I‘rccman. Sr. (1885-1963)
10. Fssie Griffin (Dec. 30, 1881-May 11, 1955); m. Henry Middleton Hester, (1881-1932)
i1. Kate Griffin (Nov. 2, 1883 Mar. 1, 1967); m. William Farnest Freeman, St. (1885-1963)
12.  Joha W. Griffin (Oct. 23, 1885-Feb. 5, 1962); died single
13. Minmie Griffin (Nov. 1888 May 30, 1967); m. Walter Dacus Whitten (1885-1970)
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UPSTATE DEATH NOTICES IN 1807 FROM THE CHARLESTON COURIER
Conttibuted by Dz, James L. Reid, 730 Walmut Hill Road, Campobello, SC 29322
Contributor’s note: This contribution completes t:y ;:rch for upstate death notices that appeared in the

Charfeston Conrier from its first fssue in January 1803 through the year 1817, These contributions have appeared
mn ths Quarterly m a rather random order of the years in thas span.

Issue of Tuesday, January 6, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Fairficld District]

Died, on the 18th ult. [December 18, 1806, at his plantation in Fairfield, WiLLIAM KIRKLAND, Fa,
int the 71st year of his age.

Issue of Friday, jaouary 23, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Lautens District]

Dred, on the 15th of November last, in Laurens district, Mrs. ANN NEWBY, st the advanced age of
112 years.—Until a few months before her death, she was able to transact the business of her house.
She has left her husband, Mr. Robert Newby, only 97 years of age, together with 2 numerous train of
acquanmtances 10 lament her loss,

Issue of Wednesday, February 25, 1807, p. 3,col. 1 [Newberry District]
Died on Monday the 9th instant, Mr. MOSES EVANS, Merchant of Newberry district, sincerely regretted
by a large circle of friends and acquaintances ; he has left & wife and three small children to deplore their
irreparable Joss.

Issue of Saturday, April 4, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Fairfield District]

Died, on Saturday the 14th ult. [March 14, 1807], after « long indisposition, which he supported with
christian fortitude, Mr. ANDREW GRASON, for many years a respectable resident of Fairfield district, m
South Carolina.

Issue of Thursday, April 23, 1807, p. 2, col. 1 [Abbeville District]

Died, on the 29th March last, in Abbeville District, Mrs. ROSE BOWIE, wife of Major John Bowie, in
the 63d yeur of her age.

Issue of Friday, July 24, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Kershaw District]

Died m Kershaw district, on the 17th ult. [June 17, 1807], Mrs. MARY WEST, aged 29 years, consort
of Capt. Simson West—het loss is greatly deplored by her relatives, and all who had the pleasure of her
acquantance.

lssue of Thursday, August 13, 1807, p. 3. col. 1 [Edgefield District]

Died, at his plantation in Edgefield district, on the 13¢h ult. [July 13, 1807], DannrrT HILL, Jun. in
the 34th year of his age.

Issue of Tuesday, September 15, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Edgeficld District]

Died, on the 13th ult. [August 13, 1807], at his plantation, in this state, Mr. PHILIP LAMAR, a very
respectable citizen—and on the same day, and of the same disorder (a violent fever) his consort, Mrs,
RUTH LAMAR. [The 1800 federal census shows one Philip Lamar in Edgefield Disteict]

Issue of Thursday, October 22, 1807, p. 3, col. 1. [Edgeficld District]
Died, at his plantation in Edgefield, S. C. on the 23d ult. [September 23, 1807] in the 25th year of his
age, Mr. MICHAEL BLOCKER.
Issue of Monday, November 23, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Newberty District]
Died on the 3d mast. at his plantation on Saluda River, Newberry District, Mr. ELISHA BROOKS, in the
47th year of his age.
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Issue of Saturday, December 5, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Fairfickd District]
Died, on the 25th of November, in Fairfield District, Mrs. CHARLOTTE PLAYER, consort of Joshua
Player, Esg. and eldest daughter of the late Mr. James Hamden Thompson of this city.

Issue of Monday, December 7, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Edgefickd District]
Died, on Sunday, the 22 ult. [November 22, 1807] at his plantation in Edgefield District, 5. C. whete
he had resided for upward of thirty years, in the 74th year of his age, Major NATHANIEL BACON.

Issue of Monday, December 7, 1807, p. 3, col. 1 [Abbeville District]

Died, on Friday the 13th mnst. [s, See below.] at his place near Cambridge, S. C. the Rev. DAVID
LILLY, aged sbout 39 years. [(Quartedly) Editor’s note: The date should be  the 13th ult.”, ie. November 13,
1807 instesd of “the 13th inst”, which would be December 13 {inpossible oo December 7.) |

AN OUTLAW TAKEN IN YORK DISTRICT IN 1824
Source: The Yorkville Pioneer, Saturday, January 17, 1824,
An Outlaw Taken

A man was committed to the jail, in this place, on Monday evening last, said to be a celebrated
shatper by the name of JEPTHA HARSHAW, alias JEPTHA HOGG, for whom & considerable reward was
offered sotne years ago by the Executive of this State, and by Judge Smith, residing at the Pinckney ferry
in this district. The circumstances which led to his detention are, as far as we can learn, as follows: On
the night of the 8th inst. A valuable horse was stolen from Wi LOVE, Esq., residing a few miles from
this place. Mr. HUGH CAIN, and a number of Mr. Love’s neighbors went in putsuit of the thief, and
after winding around a hill and through dales for 2 or 3 days, they came up with this man sbout 9 or 10
miles from this place, who, immediately on discovering his pussuers, attempted to escape through the
woods, but being assailed on all sides he was compelled to sutrender, not however without being fired
at by the party in pursuit, some say 17, some 18 times; he was shot through the hand and wrist, which
weskened him much and made his flight abortive. One reason assigned for his not having recetved
further injury from the firing, was the number of brush and small timber which warded off the balls.
On examination before ROBERT DAVISON, EsSQ. he was unwilling to give his name, His person
however can be fully identified by several persons residing in this district.

It appears somewhat strange that he should have escaped so long, as it is supposed he has been
repeatedly in this district since the reward was offered for his apprehension. It is however conjectucal
that he has accomplices in this section of country, and they will no doubt be huated up and caught by
those persons engaged in the pursuit, to whom much praise is due. For the information on the
pentlemen engaped, it would be well if editors in this state who published the notice of the Governor
and of Judge Smith, would state the time and reward offered.

Harshaw, alias Haggr, had in his possession when taken about $70 or $80 — a $20 Tennessee, the
balance 1 U.S. notes. Mr. IDAVID BYERS was the person who fiest closed with the thief, and is entitled
to much praise.

DEATH OF HENRY CANNON, 98, OF GREENVILLE DISTRICT
Source: (hariesson Conraer, issue of Wednesday, September 6, 1846, p. 2, col. 5

DD, on the 9th of August last, in Greenville District, in the 98th year of his age, Mr. HENRY CANNON, 2

Revohationary soldier.
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FAMILY GROUPS AND FAMILY CONNECTIONS FROM COUNTY COURT RECORDS
Contributed by Dr. James L. Reid, 730 Walaut Hill Road, ( ampobello, SC 29322
Contributor’s note: The intent and purpase of this contrbution is to expose family groups and family
connections from the vatious types of court records from the upstate counties of South Carolina. The
county and the type of record will be carefully identified. The wording, sentence structure {or lack
thereof}, and punctuation {or lack thereof) of otiginal documents will be followed as closely as possible.
Information within a document that is not essential nor relevant to the genealogical content will be
elided, as mdicated by successive dots, Le., ... . Statements, individual words, or letters not in the original
document will be enclosed by square brackets | |. Names, places, and dates are sometimes set in

boldface type by the contributor for purposes of highlighting and emphasis.

SPARTANBURG COUNTY
Spartanburg County, SC} Probate Court, File No. 488, Estate of John Brown, Deceased (1792), Syms
Brown, John Colling, Executors, and Sarah Brown, Executrix
Joha Brown’s Will
In the name of God Amen. | John Brown considering the uncertainty of this mortal life and that it 1s
appointed for 2ll men once to die, do make and publish this my last Will and Testament in manner and
form following,

Impritois, [ leave and bequeath unto my son Syms Brown Tract of land on which he now hves,
and aiso a Tract of two hundred acres lying at the mouth of Tyger river, also a Negto
boy named Nimrod, I also order that my said Syms 10 collect the sum of five hundred
and forty pounds from M* Davis, and for his trouble he s 1o have one hundred and
forty pounds of said money.

Secondly [ leave and bequeath unto my daughter Ann a Negro gitl named Lucie, 2 horse, bridic,
and Saddle and at her marniage she is to have the fourth part of what Stock is remaining
at the Death of my wife if it should please God that she survive me.

Thirdly [ leave and bequeath unto John Collins 2 Negro boy named Cesar, one hundred and
fifty acres of Land on Warriors Creek, and the second best horse or mare that 1s on the
plantation.

fourthly I also give unto myy danghter Martha a Negro girl named Daphne, a horse, bridle and

Saddle, 4 bed and furniture, and also at her marriage the fourth part of what Stock s
remaining at the death of my wife if she should survive me.

fifthly [ likewise leave and bequeath unto my beloved wife Sarah Brown the hiberty of living
on any of my possessions during life, and to own a Negro man named Pompey, another
Negro man called Bill, and another named Chardes, and 2 Negro gird named Doll and
another named Mitty, with all her househokd furniture and Stock, and at ber decease the
bequestfs] are to be appraised without any vendue, that is, the household furniture,
plantation tools, together with the Waggon, and the Tract of Land on which 1 now live
on the waters of Tyger tivet, as also 2 tmact of Land on Kings Creek contarnng 200
acres to be likewise appraised equally divided between my two daughters Ann and
Martha, and also at the decease of my said wife, Syms Brown and John Collins are 1o
get cach & negro of them which 1 leave to my said wife to be at her disposal which ever
she sees cause 1o give, and the other four to be equally divided to my said Daughters
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Ann & Martha; | slso order and appoint Syms Brown, Joha Collins, and my said Wife to be sole
Executors of this my last will and Testament to see every matter therein duly performed, and [ do
likewise or [sic] this my said Jast Will to be as valid as if drawn up by a Notary Public. In witness
whereof | have hereunto set my hand & Seal this 37 day of Nov* 1789,

bus
Signed, Sealed, and Acknowledged John X Brown 15eal}
i presence of nark
Nevel Wayland Ann Brown Martha Brown
South Carolina, Spartanburgh County June Court 1792

[his Last Will and Testament of John Brown deceased, being approved & proven m open court by
evilence of Nevil Wayland, was therefore ordered to record, a true copy of which is issued & this

orniginal Filed.—July 13* 1792
By W. Lancaster C. 8. C [Cletk of Spartanburg County probate court]
SPARTANBURG COUNTY

Spartanburg District, SC} Probate Court, File No. 2320, Estate of James Brown, St, Deceased (1843),
James Brown, Jr, Issac Brown, and George Smith, Executors

Will of James Brown, St
State of South Caroling, Spartanburgh District
By the will of God. Amen
[ James Brown of Spartanbusgh District and State aforesaid being of sound mind, memory and
understanding, but far advanced in age, and calling to mind the uncertainey of life have thought proper
to make and ordam this my last will and testament in manner and form following hereby revoking all
former wills by me made. That is to say.

It 12 my desire to receive decent christian burial |, and that my funersl expences, and all my just debts
be paid first out of my estate.

[ hereby will and bequeath unto my beloved wife Sarah Brown all the balance of my estate both real
and personal for her sole and proper use and benefit during her kfetime or widowhood.

[t is my will further that afier the decease or martiage of my said wife Sarsh Brown That my executors
divide all the balance of my estate amongst my children, That s to say Susan Sparks, William Brown,
James Brown, Fanny Patterson, Isaac Brown & Eleanor Smith, T'o each an equal share, and that
my executors hold in trust the amount of the share of Susan Sparks for her sole and proper use and
benefit her natural hife or widowhood and her death that the said property of funds She may recetve ot
of my estate descend to ber lawful hedrs,

I do hereby nominate, constitute, and appoint my two Sons James Brown, & Isaac Brown, and my
sonmlachotchmth%cxecumafthumyhstwﬂ]mdtmmmcm and request that they have

it puncrually fulfilled.
In testimony whereof 1 have hereunto Set my hand and Seal this August fourth day of one
thousand cight hundred and forty two. his
Signed, Sealed, declared and published, as and for the James X Brown {Seal}
last will and testament of James Brown, who m his mark

presence and the presence of each other have hereunto
set our hands as witnesses thereto
Jobn Woods Farde Chalk  Ira Morris
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Proven [in] the common form by the Evidence of John Woods one of the Subscribing witnesses &
ordered to be Entered of Record this 20 Nov 1843 RCPoole O.5.D.

[James Brown Jr. qualified as sole executor on the same day.] Will Recorded in Book D, Page 56

Petition of James Brown, Jx to Sell

South Carolina, Spartanburgh District} To R. C Poole ord” of said District

Ihe petition of of James Brown sheweth that James Brown Sen. Late of said district Dec? died
Leaving a will & the said Will appointed Isaac Brown, George Smith & your petitioner Exors thereto
and your petitioner being the anly one of ssid Exors Within said District has Qualified 1o take Lettors
Warmafalt of Appraisement &c. and as there is some property which it is shsolutely necessary that
should be sold such as stock &, which is not needed by said widow vour petitioner therefore pmu‘s your
Court for an order to sell such portion of property that the widow may think expedient to have sold to
sell as s00n as the Law will admit on a credit of 12 months & your petitioner will ever pray &c
Zﬂf‘ Nov 1843 Signed) James Brown
It 1s ordered that the Sale be made on the 14 De’ 1843 on 2 eredit of 12 months. R € Poole O. 8. D.

b -

a W SITRIE O ADDTEES S8 L p . [0

[In response to the 100 above the Probate Court Judge (the Ordinary) in office on that date (R.C.
Poole} ordered an appraisement of part of the estate of James Brown St. Joshua Draper, Moses Wilkins,
and Joha H. Lipscomb were appointed to make the appraisement and to return the same to James
Brown Jr on or before January 24, 1844, -
[The buyers at this sale were the following S

Aaron Briant Reuben Bryant B. C. Browa John H. Lipscomb
Willis Allen Sr Jerry Wyatt James Mathis G. B. Mirchell
Coleman Bryant Iry Sparks Wright Kirby Terril Bryant

Henry Mathis (The following note was appended: “4 Hoggs to Right Kirby Raced out & Kept

by the Widow.” Thus we know that Satah Brown was living on Dec. 14,
1843 ) 'This sale netted $59.70.]

»

LARTEON O SIS 1D : 52 228 SEMEEE T O L S
South Carolina, Spartanburgh District} To R Bowden Ordinary of said District
The petition of of James Brown sheweth that James Brown Sen. Late of ssid district Dec? died Leaving
awilland in said will Isaac Brown, George Smith & your petitioner was appointed Fxecutors thare unto
and your petitioner being the oaly one of said Execotors within ssid district has qualified Took Letters
of administration and has petitioned for and obtained an order and sold a part of the personal property
of said Decensed  Since said Sale the widder of said Dec® Died Leaving a snall personal Estate
subject by the provisions of said will to Equal distribution  your petitioner therefore pray your court
tor and otder to sell the personal property of said Estate allowing such credit on sale as yoy in your
Judgment may think best for the party in interest and your petitioner will ever pray .

L CON W

lIn response to James Brown's second petition, R. Bowden, who succeeded R.C.Poole as Ordinary,
ordered on November 4, 1844, an appmaisemnent for remainder of the estate of James Brown Se. He
named Joshua Draper, Moses Wilkins, John H. Lipscomb or Robert Wilkins to be appraisers. Moses
Wilking, Robert Wilkins, and Joshua Draper were appomnted to be the appraisers. They were to report
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to James Brown Jr on or before January 4, 1845,

Sale Bills on November 27, 1844 and December 14, 1844)
[The buyers at the November sale were the following:

Marcus Kirhy John Mathis James Lee Asbury Goforth
A D Wilkins Wilktam P. Brown Aaron Cowan Blackston Brown
Elice Rite Iry Sparks Salomon Crocker G. B. Muchell

A. Fendley John Brown A. Spillers R Briant

James Mathas William Briant Shelton Sparks Hary Easterwood
Cutlen Dillard William Buice Bird Sparks Elender Sparks
Jacob Lands Alford Spillers Coleman Briant Terril Briant
Lipscomb Wood John H. Lipscomb James Brown

The buyers at the December sale were the following:

James Jones Bird Sparks B. C. Brown A Choise
Thomas Brown Aron Briant [ry Sparks

(The names of the buyers at estate sales help to identify relatives and neighbors of the deceased.)]
[Contibutar’s note: [ will omit detatls of two annual returns and will conclude with an excerpt from the final
settlement of the personal estate of James Brown Sz

i MOTUCTCTE OF TN Al |

The share of Susan Brown $12.19
James Brown $12.19
W™ Brown $12.19
Eleanor Brown $12.19
Frances Patterson $12.19
[saac Brown $12.19

It is therefore ordered and decreed that the Ex'or as aforesaid pay to Each of the distributees as above
named the sums to their names Annexed with interest from | Day of Jamumry 1845, Given under my
hand and Seal Augnst 28th 1848, R Bowden ). 8. D.

[The Ordinary Bowden reverted here to the maiden names of the duughters, except Frances Brown Patterson,
We are allowed to conclude from the detatls of this estate file that James Brown Se. died tn the year 1843, We
conchude with certainty that his wife Sarah Brown died between the dutes of December 14, 1843 and November
4, 1844, and, given that the second estate sale was in November 1844, we can be confident that she died in the
year 1844, The follwing excerpts from an Fquity Court case provides more details on the faodly of James and

Sarsh Brown.]
SPARTANBURG COUNTY

Spartanburg District, SC} Equity Court, Box 26, Package 7 (1846) James Brown [Jr] vs. William Brown,
Isaac Brown # @/

State of South Carolina, Spartanburgh District} Humbly complaining uoto your Honors your Orator
James Brown Junior that James Brown Semor late of the District of and State aforesaid departed this
life in about the Jblaak] day of jblank] one thousand eight hundred and forty two |ud, having executed and
leaving ... in full force his last will and testament by which after directing his just debts and funeral
expences 16 be paid he gave and bequeathed to his wife Sarah Brown the balance of his estate both real
and personal during her lifetime or widowhood, and directed that after her death or marriage of his said
wife that his Executors divide the balance of his estate amongst his children that is to say Susan
Sparks (who is the wife of Jacob Sparks), Isaac Brown, Fanny Patterson (formerly the wife of
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William Patterson who died before Testator), Eleanor Smith (the wife of George Smith), James
Brown (your orator), snd Wiliam Brown, to each in equal shares, and that his Executors hold in truse
the account of the share of Susan Sparks for her sole and separate use during her natural life and at her
death that the szid property & funds that she might receive out of the estate descend to her lawful heirs
and appointed your orator James Brown his son, Isaac Brown, and his son in law George Smith
Executors of said will, of whom your orator alone qualified and took upon himself the burthen of
carrying into effect the provisions of said will a copy of which is hereunto filed and marked Exhibit A...

Your orator further shews unto your honors that the said James Brown Senior at the time of his death
was seized in fee of real estate consisting of about four hundred and twelve acres of land situate 10
Spartanburgh District on [blank] Creck waters of Pacolet River and bounded by lands of John H
Lipscomb, Gossett, Wilkins and others composed of several small tracts of land purchased and obtained
by the said James Brown in his lifetime from sundry persons & adjoining each other so as to form a
single tract and worth as your orator supposes about Five thousand dollars—that owing to the mamber
of divisees under the will of the said James Brown and the small quantity of land to be divided amongst
them it is the opinion of your orator that partition of skl real Estate can [not] be made without a sale
of the land which the Executors are not authotised to do by the provisions of the will and which cannot
safely be done without the auctions and order of this court and that it woukl be to the interest of the
parties and sale and partition should be ondered 25 soon as practicable.

Your orator further shews unto your Honors that the devisees William Brown, Isasc Brown and
Fannoy Patterson reside as your orstor is informed and believes without the limits of this State and
the interest of William Brown in the real estate of James Brown, by virtue of his said will, has been sold
under execution by the Sheriff of Spartanburgh District to satisfy debts of the said William Brown and
purchased by Robert Walker of Spartanburgh District ... by which purchase your omtor supposes that
the said Robert Walker has become entitled the share of the said William Brown in the said Estate of
the said James Brown dec’d under the will aforesaid. ...

Family of James (Sr) and Sarah Brown
James Brown
b. 1760 or before—d. August 23, 1843 (Goucher Bapt. Ch. record), Sparmanburg District, SC
Sarah his wife, maiden name unknown to me
b. 1760 or before— 1844, Spartanburg District, SC
Their known chikiren
1. Frances (Fanny) Brown b. before 1790-—d. {after August 28, 1848; in 1840 Pickens Co., Ala.)
Husband: William Patterson

2 Susan Brown b. ca 1790 d. after Oct. 28, 1850 (Pickens Co., Alsbama census)
Husband: Jacob Sparks

. ? James Brown b. ca 1790 —d. after 1850 Spartanburg District census
Wife:

4, Isasc Brown b. after 1800—d. (after August 28, 1848)
Wife:

& Willtlam Brown b. ca 1808—d. after Oct. 4 1850 (Pickens Co., Alabama census)
Wife: Alpha

6. Eleanor Brown b. 1812——d. after Sept. 18, 1850 (Pickens Co., Alabama census)
Husband: George Smith
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THE VOTE TO CREATE CHEROKEE COUNTY IN 18%

Source: The Ladser (Gaffney City, S.C.), issue of Thursday, December 10, 1896, p. 1, col. 1

[Editor’s note: In the August 2006 issue of this Quarterly { p. 114) we published an article addressing the physical
and historical attributes of a proposed new county to be formed mainly from Spartanburg County and from
smaller areas of York and Union Counties. The article below reports on the vote of the citzens in the ares of
the proposed new connty to accept or reject the new county and to choose its name. The editor of the Ledger
was ohviously excited 10 report their approval. Of the place names listed in a table showing how the votes were
cast at various polling places, Gaffney City (now called Gafiney), Blacksburg, and Cowpens are tocday thriving
towns. Others survive a5 names of church communities, and some of them have vanished )

CHEROKEE!!
{ Hurrah! Whoop-c-¢!
WE ARE THE PEOPLE!
You Can Talk About Your Two to One But look at This.

We Are Going to Set Up Housekeeping for Ourselves — The Vote and How It Was Cast — Talk of
Fraxl at White Plams.

Landside | ‘Tornado ! Barthguake ! Blizzard | Cyclone ! Volcano | Whoop | Whoop-e-¢ | We Are
the people ! Geemany whiz. great guns and what not ! The people have spoken.

Iid you ever see the like? Talk about your two-thirds vote being hard to carry |

How about three-fourths and five to one?

THE LEDGER sends hearty greetings to the 22,000 people of Cherokee county.

The day opened clear and bright. It was an ideal election day, neither hot nor cold and not too dry.
The voting began eatly and by 12 o’clock three fourth of the ballots had been cast and from that on the
voting was slow. In the afiernoon the couriers began to artive from the country precincts and and n
every instance the news was encouraging and that served to help those in town to work that much
harder. There were no quarrels at this precinet that we know of and no fights anywhere.

But those good, brave, honest, courageous and manly men in town and country alike, who have
worked so hard and faithfully to help themselves and posterity keep shoulder to shoulder in time to
come, as they have in this fight, and work for each others common good and make this the baby county
of South Carolina the banner county of the State. She has the most festile soil, the finest climate, as
wonderful water power as there is anywhere, as brave, as honest, as manly man, a5 true, as pure and
pretty women as ever made home happy, or blessed a pation. Let country and town keep hands joined
as they have been in this fight — have no difference in the towns and those in the country. It has been
our commen interest we have fought for and won — our interests are one and the same; the people in
the country are, and have proven themselves our friends, and the town will prove by kindly interest and
treatment of our country friends that we recognize that we fought for our common good, and that our
interests are one and the same.

We are cemented with interest of commeon good, let that same feeling exist and not be and not be
severed by the false reports of those who have none of our interests at heart, and who fought us bitterly
and unfairly befote the election, by circulating all sorts of false reports and fulse figures and preventing
the truth 1o satisfy those for whom they were acting 2s hirelings. For those who have acted in good
faith, and fought us honestly (and there were some) we bear no ill will or malice. To those whom we
may have thought have not been fair, we extend to them & most hearty greeting and ask them to join
with us — for our interests are theirs, and make this the pride of the Piedmont.
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There are some whose names have been brought more prominently to the front in this fight than
others, and every one knows who they ate, and they have worked day and night without remuneration.
Yet we all recognize that a great deal of effective work was done by the quiet, unassuming voter i town
and country, and our honest convictions are that each one who worked in their own way for what we
so much needed, and those who worked against it, will reap great benefits — a rich hatvest — in the
reduction of taxes and being surrounded with conveniences that all taxpayers should have in attending
to private matters and paying their duty to their state and country.

A step forward has been taken. We mean to move on toward progress, education and richness and
advancement in general.

The success of the election is due to no one man or set of men. Every man kid down his prejudice
and his business to bring about the desired result. The farmer left his farm to talk New County to his
less enthusisstic neighbor. The banker forsook his bank, the merchant neglected his business, the
mechanic laid aside his tools and all worked for the success of the movement.

It shall be the sim of THE LEDGER, and it speaks the wishes of the people both in town and
country, to have a reduction in taxes, and as soon 28 matters settle down we want the promised made
on the stump, advocating New County, cattied out in full. Let the people in each township, or portion
of a township, elect, say five delegates, and meet at Gaffney or some convenient place, and formulate
in the act creating the county what the people wish, fix the salaries of their public servants, reduce them
to & plane where the officehokder can Jive and not squeeze the taxpayer to death, and then when the
legislature convenes and creates this county, the salaries agreed upon in convention here ~ fixed and
approved by the people — can be put in the act creating the county, and we can, and will, show to those
who have misrepresented us, and the state at large, that Cherokee County can “live and let live™ and run
on a8 small a tax as any county in the state.

We give the tabulated returns of all the boxes in the tetritory that will soon be Cherokee County, and
as can be seen, Maud Precinct in Spartanburg County is the banner precinet, casting 56 votes for the
county and 1 No.

About 12 o'clock a telegram was received from Blacksburg saying the “yes™ ballots had all been voted
and to send mote. They were dispatched at once.

Some of the hardest wotk was done in Union county that has ever been done, and good men who had
been outspoken in their opposition, turned at the very last moment. Friend met friend and pleaded in
earnest with them to take the progressive step.

At Timber Ridge, new county received 77 to 19. It was thought that box would be about even.

Wilkinsville showed up as the banner box from Usnion, the vote being 181 for to 7 against.

Draytonville surpassed all expectations by voting 59 to 10 for the new county.

Glandybueg proved 2 wonder by voting 27 to 10 for the new conaty.

The greatest surptise of all came from Sarratt’s, where we than broke even by 68 to 6{. Here the
hardest fighting was done. The opposition had gathered all its force there, hoping to beat us right there.
A geatleman told THE LEDGER yesterday that the opposition had offered as much as $5 for a single
vote there.

Blackshurg did manly, giving a four to one vote for the new county, while Buffalo rose to the occasion
with 2 poll of 5 to 1.,

Gassy Pond gave 2 good round vote of 5 to 1.

Ezell’s broke in our favor by 47 1o 30.

Onr fnends at Macedonia went agm us by 24 to 18, but the new county advocates did noble work two
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hold it down to that.
At White Plains the opposition kept their promise to roll up a great majority against us by voting 132
against 9 for. We lift our hat to those nine patriots,

We have heard of some irregularities at this box, but we beat them too bad to claim it
Joe Allen’s went against us by 26 to 2. Again we lift our hat 1o the two patriots.

SPARTANBURG COUNTY

County Seat Name Name
Yes No Guifney Cary § Chesokee Limestone
Gatfaey i P & 514 421 4
Grsssy Pood 4 11 65 7 47
Mand 56 1 56 56
Eazeils 47 39
Macedania 18 24
Thickety 13 8
Winte Plans 9 132
Joe Alen’s 26 2
McKebvy 1
Arrowwood
Cowpem 2 12
Chfton
Trough
_ UNIONCOUNTY sl
Dirxytosville 59 10 54
Tunber Radge 77 19 77 31 37
Glachburg 27 16 34 25 ;
Willkonsville 181 7 131 117 4
Sxroatt’s 68 60 68 11 &
_ YORK COUNTY Pt . L
Blackshurg B 0 2 200
S IS TN A L 42
Total 1342 422 1319 1000 M3 G
A number of “no”™ votes cast in Union were illegal, not having the correct matter printed on them.

However we don’t claim that. We let them claim every vote cast against the new county, whether regular
or iregular, according to law or not, and we beat them just as stated in the above table.

\s soon as enough retuens were in 10 insure the new county the pent up feelings of the populace was
let off and the night was made one of joyful celebrating. 1t is pleasant to note the few drunks when the
occasion s taken into consideration.

To every man who voted for new county, we feel grateful and acknowledge our thanks. To every man
who voted “no”™ we wish to say we bear you no ill will, and may prosperity smile upon you and yours
as well as us and ours. May the sun shine as bright for you as for us, and may the grass look as green,
the breeze be as refreshing, the water as sparkling, and the song of the birds be as sweet to you 2= to us.

Gaffaey’s new band furnished excellent music Monday and Tuesday nights. The boys played like old
vets and no one would have immgined that they had only been practicing five weeks. The music was

soul-stirring and helped bring along the new county.

- »
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EARLY COLLINS FAMILIES IN THE SPARTANBURG AREA AND
ALLIED FAMILIES. 1
Contributed by Donald Royston Collins, 528 Fast Highland Street, Altemonte Springs, F1, 32701
<doncollins (“"vnnhlink et
Source: The booklet The Collins and Allied Familics, ca 1958, by R. W. Collins (Col. Robert Wilbur

Collins)

(Editor’s note: In the August 2006 issue of this Quarterdy (p. 121) we published genealogical sketches by Colone!
Collins of his ancestral Collins families. He placed the members (to the extent known) of different families in
groups that be referred to as tables. Colonel Collins also did genealogical sketches in his booklet of allied
farmlies, Le., those families that intetmarried with descendants of Thomas and Rosanah Dodd Colling. He also
cid family groups, or tables, for some of the allied familes. We present his results for an Anstin famnily below.]

Table 1 — COLLINS Family
I. William Collins (1) of York, England marricd Mary Campbell (1) of Clan Campbedl of Scotdand.

L. Thomss Collins (2) married Rosanah Dodd (2). Both of York, England.
1729-11 Sept. 1796

1. john Collins (3 ) martied Elizabeth Brown
Nov. 1754-4 April 1841 1759-2 Oct. 1831

2. William Collins {3}
3. Richard Collins (3)

4. Fannie Colling (3}

5. Joseph A. Coilins (3) martied Elizabeth Fleming
10 Feb. 1763-24 Aug, 1847
6. Jane (Jennie) Collins (3) martied Col. Wilham Austin
23 June 1764-9 Nov. 1849 27 Mar. 1759-23 Feb. 1841
7. Nancy Collins (3) martied Alexander Thompson
1768-1859 1768-1843
Table 2 — COLLINS Family
M1 John Collms (3) [See p. 164 above| married Elizabeth Brown
Nov. 1754-4 Apr. 1841 1759-2 Oct. 1831
1. Sallie Colling (4) married cesnsness SWRANSCY
2. Thomas B. Collins (4) martied M. L. A. Collins
1791-15 Mar 1855 1800-27 June 1849

a. Rosanah Collins (5)
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1796-August 1897
b. Infant, lived 21 hours (5)

¢. James Alexander Collins (5)
........... 14 Feb. 1831

3. John S. Collins (4)
6 March 1795-28 May 1870

4. Alexander Collins (4)
Died at age 16.

5, Martha Collins (4) married Sterling Westmoreland

THE ALLIED FAMILIES

All the families with which the Collins family has allied itself through marriage cannot be given
the space that each deserves because the author has no knowledge of some of them other than the
marriage occurred, the dates of some are unknown and in & few cases, only the surname is lu}own. .\.153 -
some who were contacted have not furnished requested information. The names of the allied families
are shown in the various tables of this book. Where sufficient information was obtained, individual
metnbers of such famihies are mentioned.

COLONEL WILLIAM AUSTIN

Colonel Willam Austin was bon in Virginia, 27 March 1759, He served as a scout i the
Revolationary War and as a Colonel in the War of 1812. He married Jane {Jeanie) Collins (3), daughter
of Thomas Collins (Z), 12 Jan. 1783. They had five children.

(See Table 31.)
JAMES WADDY AUSTIN

James Waddy Austin was born20 November 1860. He attended Wofford College. Afterwards
moved to Atanta Ga. While employed, he studied law and was admitted to the Georgm Bar m 1886,
His first case was before a Justice of the Peace Court. From there, he went on to ity cases m all Georgia
coutts, many in 14 other states and before the Supreme Court of the United States. He was ( b!«.md and
fadge Advocate General of Georgia, 1892-1896. He rendered pattiotic service as !-an' Price
Commissioner for Georgia in World War 1. He married Mec Remer Young, 29 Oct. 1908. They had
two children. He died n 1944,

{See Table 31 below.)
MAJOR JAMES WADDY AUSTIN, JR.

Major James Wadkdy .-\us.ﬁh. jr was born 4 Mar. 1910. He graduated from Georgga .\’c:h-pl of
[echnology with B.S. in Mechanical Engineering in 1931, He was appointed a :Zml 1 Aeut. l'.ngmct:r
Corps and ordered to active duty 10 Oct. 1942, He was an Assistant Engineer on Gen. ( seorge Patton’s
third Army Hq. Staff during the advance of that Army from France into Germany duting the sccond
World War. He was awarded the following medals: European African Middle Fastern Theater Service,
Bronze Star, World War 1l Victory and American Theater Service. He was relieved from active dqry m
Nov. 1945, was promoted to Major in April 1948, He married Frances Ruth Burch 19 Nov. 1945.

DOCTOR THOMAS COLLINS AUSTIN (4)

Utper Sonth Carsbina Gowesiggy € Fistory, November 2006, Vol. XX, No. 4




174

Dr. Thomas Collins Austin (4}, son of Col. Wm. Austin and Jane Collins Austin, was born 30
June 1790 in what is now Greenville County, South Carolina. He served in his father’s regiment as a 1st
Licutenant during the War of 1812, After the war he attended the University of Pennsylvania and was
graduated in Medicine and Surgery. He served his community many years as & country doctor. He
masried Mary Turner James. They bad 11 children. See page 39 of “The Austin and Allied Families™
by James W. Austin, published in 1936.

DOCTOR THOMAS COLLINS AUSTIN {6)

Dr. Thomas Collins Austin (6) great-grandson of Col. Wm. Austin and Jane Collins Austin, was
bom m Greenville County, South Carlina, 29 July 1880. Although the author was born in adjoining
Spartanbutg County, hardly more than 30 miles distant, the cousins never met until the First World War
brought them together in 1917 in Paris, France, where Lizut. Col. Austin was serving as Surgeon of the
[nstrict of Paris. He met Helen Marshall, a Red Cross worker there and mastied her. After the war, he
resigned from the Army and settled in Pasadena, California, where he established a medical practice. He
died in 1955. (See Table 31.)

Table 31 — AUSTIN FAMILY
[See page 175 below for an article on the Nathaniel Austin family.]
. William Austin (3} (sketch) married Jane (Jennie) Collins (3)
27 Mar. 1759 23 Feb 1841 daughter of Thomas Collins (2)
1. Mary Austin (4) married James McDaniel
They had 8 childten 27 Dec. 1807
2. John Austin {4) martied Elizabeth Copeland
They had 9 children 9 Apr. 1807
3. Rose Austin (4) died at age 10.
4. Thomas Collins Austin (4) married Mary Tutner James

They had 11 children.
5. William Lawrence Manning Austin, (4] sce below

IL Wm. Lawrence Manning Austin (4) married Eltzabeth Stokes
10 Sept. 1803-13 Dec 1861 25 May 1826
They had 11 children including:
1. William Heary Austin (5) married Martha Ann Hudson
28 Nov. 1829-29 Jan. 1914 22 Jan. 1860 1 June 18424 Mar. 1927
They had 4 sons.
1. James Waddy Austin (6) married Mec Remer Young
20 Nov. 1860-30 Apz. 1944 29 Oct. 1908
a. fames Waddy Austin, Jr. {7) mamed Frances Ruth Burch
4 Mar. 1910- 19 Nov. 1945 6 Mar. 1913-

b. Frances Cromer Austin (7) married
{1} Gordon Rives Cates, 111 (8)
18 June 1942-
(2) Austin Everett Catts (8)
10 July 1944-
2. Wm. Lawrence Manning Ausin (6)

Gordon Rives Catts, [.*6
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20 Aug. 1864-23 Feb. 1931
3. Wickliffe Tyler Austin (6)
21 Apr. 1874
4. Thomas Colling Austin (6) married Helene Marshall
29 July 1880-1935.
[Editor note: The sketches and tables presented here by no means exhsusts those in Colonel Colltns’
hooklet. We plan to publish more of his work in future sssues of this Quartedy.|

SKETCH OF NATHANIEL AUSTIN, REVOLUTIONARY WAR VETERAN,
RESIDENT OF GREENVILLE DISTRICT

Source: Groenside News, Monday, October 26, 1970, Special South Carolina Trcentennial Edstion,
Section C, page 10,

AUSTIN, 10 SONS FOUGHT AS PATRIOTS

by

Aurelia Austin, [with photo, not shown here|
Corvensitie News Bditor’s Note: [The author] is a descendant of Nathamel Austin, hives 1 Atlanta (1970
and has written numerous historical articles for magazines and newspapers. She has published a volume
of poems, “Bright Feather,” and is author of the University of Geotgia Press box k, “Georgia Boys with
Stonewsll Jackson.” Miss Austin is 2 past president of the Atlanta Writers Club.

Should Captain Nathaniel Austin, St., Revolutionary War Pattiot, return to Gilder after 170 years, he

would be surprised to find that the swank subdivision Camelot now occupies & large part of his ariginal
lantation.

. Logan, m his history of South Carolina, wrote, “As late as 1775 the woodlands, carpeted with grass

and the wild peavine growing as high as 2 homse’s back, and wild flowers of every hue were the constant

admiration of the traveler and adventurous pioneer. The forests of those early times were far mose

imposing than any now remaining in this potion of the ancient Cherokee Nation.

“The trees were genetally larger and stood so wide apart that 2 deer or buffalo could be easily seen
at a long distance, there being nothing to obstruct the view but the rolling surface. On the elevated hill
tops the strolling hunter often took his stand to sweep, at & single view, & large extent of country .
Large herds {of deer) were mrely ever out of sight of the pioneer from the cabin door.”

Captain Auvstin built two home st Gilder. The first was on 2 slight hill near the creek, named for
Gilbert Gilder when he and Penmington came through Old Ninety Six in February, 1749,

It 1s said by his grandson, Dr. Thomas Collins Austin (1790-1883) of nearby Ouakland that his
grandfather Nathaniel Austin was 2 man of commanding personality, bold and adventurous ~ a man
of affairs and 2 shrewd trader, that he had the bearing and manners of an anstocrat and that he was
austere and often a ripid disciplinarian. He was = splendid horseman and a deadly shot.

To face the days of Indians, Toties, Tatleton, and his personal tragedies which lay shead of him
Nathaniel Austin needed all these attributes.

The noted historian, Colonel S.5. Crittenden, in his history, Greeaville Century Book (1903} wrote:

“Owing to its exposed sitaation and being still Indian territory, there were few settlements in this
County previous to the Revolutionary War. Among the very first settlers was doubtless Nathaniel
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Austin, the great-grandfather of Hon. J. Thomas Austin, who immigrated from London to Vitginia and
then to South Carohna m 1761, He settled fifteen miles east of Greenville near Enoree River and
Gilder’s Creek. He held appointments as High Constable under Geotge 11 undl the troubles with
England began. The then joined the patriot army, and with ten sons, did active service at different times
during the war.”

Captam Nathaniel Austin did not hold the office of Constable for upper South Caroling as what is
know Greenville and the tertitory around it at that time belonged to the Cherokee Nation. He held this
pasition before leaving Virginia m 1761, where he had resided for ten vears in or near Austinville,
Virginia, according to family tradition. Another tradition ins that he came to South Carolina as an
emissary o the Indians.

TRAGEDY HITS FAMILY

I'tagedy came to Nathaniel Austin and his blond English wife, Agnes Richardson Austin, in the loss
of their youngest child and only davghter, who was born in South Caroling in 1764. She was shin during
the Revolution in 1781, at the age of 17 (some teferences say 12) by Cherokee Indians, who had joined
the Tories. Mary had attended 2 quilting party at the home of 2 nearby neighbos.

When the alurm was spread that Indians were near, she mn towsrds home, but on remembering
something she had left at the party she returned, and as she was leaving their neighbor’s home the
second time, she was cut down by Indian arrows in sight of her young friend, Miss Gilder. She crawled
mto the undetbrush to escape, thrust leaves into her side to staunch the flow of blood and died alone.

Her youngest brother William, in company with Capnin Pew tracked the Indians and killed two. The
third escaped. William and the Captain were later tried for these killings and acquitted.

NATHANIEL, SR. IN WAR

Nathaniel Sr. Became Captain of Infantry in General Andrew Pickens’ Brigade, South Carolina Militia,
The eight lndents in the Archives of South Carolina Historical Commission st Columbiz authenticate
his participation in the siege of Chardeston, Augusea, Kettle Creek (Washington Georgia), Musgrove
Mills, Cowpens (north of Gilder) and other battles in South and Notth Carolina.

Captain Austin’s original Indent prepared on Aug. 8, 1785, reads as follows:

“PURSUANT to an ACT of the GENERAL ASSEMBLY passed the 16™ of March 1782, We, the
COMMISSIONERS of the TREASURY, have this Day delivered to Mr. Nathaniel Austin this our
INDENTED CERTIFICATE, for the Sum of Ninety-two Pounds, Nine Shillings and ten Pence
Sterling for Duty done i the Militia as Captain and Provistons for State Troops and Militis in 1779 and
1781 as per amount passed by the Commissioners on Accounts, the sasd Nathaniel Austin, his
Executors, Administrators, or assigns, will be entitled to recetve this Office the sum of Six Pounds Nine
Shillings and five pence on the Demand for one Years Interest on the principal Sum of Nmety-two
Pounds Nimne Shillings and Ten Pence and the like Interest annually.

“The said Nathaniel Austin his Executors, Administrators or Assigns, will be entitled also to receive,
and shall be paid if demanded, the principal Sum of Ninety-two Pounds Nime Shillings and ten Pence
on the eighth of August, 1787.

“And the said Nathaniel Auatin, his Executors, Admintstrators or Assigns, may make any purchases
at any Public Sales of Confiscated Property, {except such as shall be ordered by the Legislature for
Special Putposes;) and this INDENT shall be received in Payment.”

Beeves from the pastures at Gilder and Gilder wheat and corn also played a part in the Revolution
as Captain Nathaniel Austin fornished supplies to the coops.
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TEN SONS IN REVOLUTION

Nauthaniel Austin Jr. served in the Revolution, as Quartermaster Sergeant in Captain John Drury’s
Company, in Little South River Regiment, commanded by Col. James Williams, South Caroling Militia.

John Edward Austin was 2 private in Col. Levi Casey’s Regiment, South Carolina Militia, as were
Thompson Austin and Francis Austin and Jesse Austin served as & private in Roebuck’s Regiment,
South Carolna Milnia.

The fact that Walter (Watt) Austin, Benjamin Austin and George Austin participated in the
Revolutionary War was attested by their father, Captain Nathaniel, and by their two brothers, Francis
and William, cach of whom lived on at Gilder after the Revolution, the father for eighteen years, Francis
for forty years, and William for sixty years.

Corporal Walter Austin served in the Infantry of the Virginia Continental Army and William Austin
served as scout attached to the Staff of General Andrew Pickens. He assisted in locating and
reconnoitering the enemy at Musgrove Mill, and fought in the line under Colonel James Williams. He
participated in the battles of Kettle Creek, Georgia, Guilford Court House and Cowpens.

JENNIE COLLINS

Perhaps one of her rides to deliver secret information to her brother, Captain John Collins, who
participated in most of the battles of South Carolina, Jennie met young William Austin, who by then
would have been at least twenty. (He was born m Virgania, March 27, 1759.)

Jennie was approximately sixteen at the time her first exciting role in the War of the Revolution took
place, just prior to the battle of Cowpens (January 17, 1781). She was born June 23, 1764, the daughter
of Thomas Collins {1729-1796) and Rosanna Dodd Collins {1728-1798), in what would later be called
Spartanburg District,

After the battle of Musgrove’s Mill, her brother Captain john Collins had taken British prisoners to
North Carolina, where he joined General Daniel Motgan, encamped at Grindal Shoals. Desperately in
need of fresh troops, General Morgan sent Captain Collins home where he began recruiting men for
the Patriot cause. He was able to enlist fifty men.

As it was vitally necessary for him to communicate with General Morgan as to when and where he
should join him with the fresh troops. Captain Collins remembered that his young sister “Jennie”™ had
been a superb homsewoman since the age of twelve.

Relying in the courage and mtelligence of his sixteen-year-old sister Jennie, Captain Colling’ reports
were sewed m the lining of her saddle bags snd she rode away to the camp of Genersl Morgan.

James W. Austin, in his “Austin and Allied Families,” stated “About January 11, 1781, mounted on
a fleet horse, the young girl sped away alone on her forty-mile ride. She faced the icy winds of the
January cold. She had to swim her hotse over two rivers . . . She man an imminent risk of capture at the
hands of the British and Tones whose crueltics at this stage of the war were frightful . . .

“Tories had murdered defenseless patriot women in cold blood, and the cruel British General,
Tarleton, had executed prisoners of war. “Jennie™ narrowly escaped a collision with Tardeton’s troops,
for his forces, moving to attack General Morgan, crossed the path she had ridden over the day after she
had passed. But regardless of her peril, the brave girl found the camp of the Patriot Army and delivered
her dispatches 1o the astonished commander.

“Jennie Collins tarried in the Patriot camp long enough to render 2 service to General Daniel Morgan
which that gallant officer gratefully acknowledged . . . She washed the General’s shirts, and left him the
clean linen which he wore a few days later in the battle of Cowpens.

“Then with General Motgan’s orders to her brother, Captain John Colling, concealed in her saddle,
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Jennie galloped back aver the lonely trails, again swam her horse through the icy waters, and safely
rejoined her soldier brother at his camp, after a gallant gallop of eighty miles.”

In spite of the war and the objections of Jenmie's father, said to be of Scotch descent, love found a
way. William Austin of English lineage courted Jennie and plotted how be could elope with her. [t was
first necessary to find 2 time when Jenmie’s father was not at home.

Young William Austin had & chum who was on good terms with William Collins. So William Austin
conceived the idea of having his chum borrow Ceolling’ dog and gun to go hunting with Jennie's father.

Charles Wesley Austin wrote his brother George in Oxnard, Calif., under date of October 10, 1911,
“While they {the hunters) were away, William Austin took Jennie on his horse behind him and they took
their everlasting elopement to the nearest parson. And they lived happily ever after.”

They were married January 12, 1783,

( apfamjuhn Collins with his fresh troop of forty-four men, joined Genersl Motgan at Cowpens on
the night of January 16, 1781, 2 few houts before the battle where John Collins was wounded and young
William Austin from Gilder by the creek participated with his father and some of his older hrothers.

BROTHERS MIGRATE

Nathaniel’s youngest son William, and his brother Francis, remained at Gilder after the Revolitionary
War. Their father died around 1800 and was buried on Gilder land very near his first home by the creck
{now Camelot), his grave being marked with & hand hewn field stone.

Nathaniel Jr. Was in Pendleton by the time of the 1790 census, Jesse in Spartanbusg snd son Edward
mn Laurens. Francis left Gilder and moved about one and one-half miles awsy, Jocating at the John
Austin home. By the early 1800s some of the okler sons migrated to Georgia. Georgia records indicate
that Nathauiel Jr., Jesse, Thompson, and James drew land in the various Chetokee land lotteties.

Joha Edward resided for a time in Virgini, as did Walter, but returned to South Carolina to draw his
war pension. Benjamin drew his pension in North Carolina. Only Geortge is unaccounted for at this
writing,

DESCENDANTS

Within a few yards of Gilder [1 where William took his bride, descendants of William and Jenmie
enjoy the bounty of Gilder 111, built around 1830 by Dr. William Lawrence Manuing Austin (1803
1861), son of William and Jane Collins Austin. (Dr. Manning Austin served as captain of the Davis
Guards, Hampton Legion, C.S. Army.)

On the edge of the front lawn stands a quaint little green building that once was the Gilder post office.
When it had two rooms it was used 25 a guest house for male suiters in the old days, and for 2 long
petiod it was used as the office of Dr. Manning Austin.

Dr. Manning Austin’s son, Willam Henry Austin (1829-1914) was the grandfather of the current
owner of Gilder, William Renwick Austin, William Henry Austin was a physician and planter at Gilder
for many years and will be affectionately remembered by his patients throughout the county.

Sisters and a brother of Renwick Austin who live near Gilder and who were born there are: Catherine
Austin Watson, Mary Austin Cooper and John Erwin Austin who lives about three miles away on the
Woodruff Road. Their brother James W. Austin passed away in 1970

Numerous Austin descendants of Willlam and Jane € ollms Nathaniel Austin JR., Francis, John
Edward and some of the other Revolutionary war sons live in Greenville, SpamnbmgmdSmpwtmlk
South Carclina. There are also descendants in Alabama, Georgia, Florida, North Carolins, Tennessee,
Texas, Pennsylvania, and Virginia, ss well as California.
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THE DUNAGAN FAMILY ODYSSEY FROM IRELAND
TO THE SOUTH CAROLINA PIEDMONT

Contributed by Percy E. Dunagan, Jr < jrdunagin(@ hotmail.com >

[n the difficult task of establishing one’s genealogy over many centuries, one most hikely must spend
years seeking all the available facts. Even then, much i left to inference and speculation. | will attempt
to separate the facts from my conclusions based on those facts in this article.

Shortly after the signing of the Treaty of Limerick in 1691 between the forces of the newly elected King
Wilkamn of Orange and the depx ssed King James 11 of England, one can find several l)unagan families
n [rish records. Of course the spelling of the family names differed from family to family and for &
single individual even mn the same docament. | use one of the more common spellings in the United
Stares for this family throughout this article. Of special interest ts a family registered in St. Joho's Church
of Ireland (Anglican Protestant) in the early 1700% m Lanerick, [reland because the names of the father
Wilbar and two of his sons, William and Thomas, show up often in the American fanuly that 1 am
tracing here. The probabality that this is the proper selection 1s based on several arpuments.

Firstly, they were Protestant; Catholics were not welcome in the English Amencan colonies befare the
so-called potato famine m 1845-1847, especially not i the South. Secondly, the Presbytenan Protestants
of Northern Ireland were not Irish; they were Scots, who never to this day have integrated significantly
with their Catholic countrymen, especially in Northern Ireland. They remained distinet, in addition,
from the Anglo-Irish, who were members of the Anglican Church of Ireland. They began to immigrate
to the Amencas in 1700, but then primarily ro Pennsylvanis, where they could have religious freedom
from the Church of England. Eventually they did come in great numbers to Piedmont North and South
Carolina, but that was after our story begins. Thirdly, histonians have identified 3 or 4 separate Dunagsn
fanuhies {septs) in Ireland, but at least one m central Ireland {County Roscommon), with whom I am
well acquanted, entirely Catholic. They did not migrate to America until around 1850, Unless one can
find one of the other septs in Ireland that matches the family 1 describe here better than the one above,
it 18 reasonahble to conclude that the one from Limerick is probably our ancestral famaly.

Court records n Caroline County and Essex County, Virgima show 2 Thomas Dunsgan on 7 different
occasions in 1737, when he probably immigrated under some degree of mdenture, until 1743, when the
court declared him free from any legal obhgation to a John Picket, who had “imported him™ to suppott
2 land grant clam n Orange County, Viginia. Thereafter, he disappeared from pubhic records in
Virginm. These reconds also describe a Timothy Dunagan and a David Dunagan, both of whose names
later appeared in North Caroline families and both of whom died mtestate in Virginia. Tinothy, a
carpenter, died in 1756, and David, a tailor, died in 1751, A Timothy Dunagan appeared several
generations later in Orange County, VA. His relationship to the one descrbed earher in Virginia records
s unknown, but he does not appear to be m direct line to the one 1 describe below. A David Dunagan
fought m Virginia and North Carolina mn the Revolutionary war, received a land grant in North Caroling
for that service, and later sppeared in Tennessee records.

I'he scene now moves south about 150180 miles to north-central and northeast North Caraling. This
aren could have been reached relstively easily overand from the shores of the Rappabannock River in
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Virginia, where both Caroline and Fassex Counties are located. Immigrants to this region of North
Carolina before 1750 would have taken the Indian trade routes to this area before the opening of the
Great Pennsylvania Wagon Road in 1753, The famous road went from eastern Pennsylvania to the
Piedmont sections of North and South Carolina via the Shenandosh Valley of Virginia. A Thomas
Dunagan appeared as & surveyor in land grant records in Edgecombe County in eastern NC in 1748,
That name appeared again as the recipient of a 637-acre land grant in nearby Jobnston County (now
Wake County) in 1762 just south of Raleigh, the present state capitol. Deed records state that he died
sometime before 1764, and that his land was sold by Thomas Dunagan, Sr. and John Dunagan, Sr.,
apparently his sons. We don’t have a “smoking gun”™ here, but it is reasonable to conclude that the
Thomas Dunagan of Limerick, Ireland, the Thomas Dunagan of Visginia and the Thomas Dunagan of
Edgecombe and Wake Counties, NC are one and the same based on the factors | have considered

above.

At the same time that the carly Thomas Dunagan of Notth Carolina seitled in Edpecombe County,
[homas Dunagan, St. And John Dunagan, Sr. settled in Otange County, NC, mostly in present Durham
County. Thomas recetved 2 200-acre land grant in 1751 and John recetved 2 640-acre land grant in 1753,
the first of many for John. By 1759 Thomas had sold his land; by 1763 John had sold all but the last
prece, which he sold in 1768. Both appeared to have maintsined some interest in Orange County until
1768, although Thomas wes described as 2 Johnston County planterin 1763 and John as an Edgecombe
County planter i connection with land transaction Edgecombe County from 1763 unril 1775,

Although there is some overlap in both Thomas and Joha’s interest in eastern Nosth Caroling with theis
subsequent settlement in Surry County, NC, both appeared to have left the eastern parts for Western
Notth Carclina even before the Revolutionary War. It is most likely that it was Thomas, Sr. who applied
for and received the land grant in 1768 at London Bluff, near Augusta, GA, the southern end of the
Great Pennsylvania Wagon Road. However, a will dated 1776 shows he had already sold out. Fven
before, in 1771, he bad already begun to pay taxes in Surry County, NC. John traded the last of his
property in Omange County in 1768 with the Few family in exchange for a 300-acre property in Surry
County, NC, obtained in 1767. Incidentally, this same Few family appeared very soon in Greenville
County, SC according to land records, indicating an early connection between pessons slong the
Piedmont sections of the Carolinas.

Orther Dunagans, Willlam Dunagan, St. And Charles Dunagan, Sr., presumably brothers of Thomas and
John, obtained land grants in then Orange County, NC shortly after their older brothers, Thomas and
fohn. However, William and Charles and their descendants remained in Otange County for many years
and became relatively rich, nudging from their property and slaves. Others have traced their descendants,
and they will not be followed further here. Another likely younger brother, Joseph, purchased 2 piece
of property in Orange County in 1758 but sold it by 1764. He appears to be the same Joseph Dunagan
for whom a number of tracts were sutveyed in Sumter County, SC shortly afterward. He never
registered those tracts, but he moved to Surry County, NC by 1771 and remained there until about 1800
secording to census and tax records.

Thomas Dunagan, Sr. obtained 4 land grants in Surry County, NC beginning in 1784 totaling 320 acres
at the junction of the Ararat River and Flat Shoals Creek, including the present village o Ararat, NC. He
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sold those properties only to Dunagans, presumably his childeen, Elijsh, Ehzabeth and Hannah. Tax,
census and land records in Surry County and Barren County, KY indicate that Thomas remained in
Surry County until about 1818, when he moved to Kentucky, where his probable son, Thomas Jr., is
hsted in the 1810 census. Based on these same records, another probably son, Jesse, farmed 100 acres
of Thomas” land for some thirty years hefore Thomas sokd it in 1816, Jesse then moved with his rather
large family to Geeenville, SC, where he is listed in the 1820 census. Pusther close ties between the
Thomas Dunagmn and Jesse Dunagan famibes are indicated in & non-retrieved letter from the Greenville,
SC, post office addressed 10 & Thomas or Jesse Dunagan in 1825. Based on census records in 1830 and
1840, his family remained there, but he must have died before 1830,

Thomas St.’s son, Thomas Jt, appears to have moved around even more that his father. After
purchasing a piece of land from John Dunagan in 1759 in Orange County, he sold it in 1768, when he
might have moved with his father to London Bluff, GA. He is probably also the john Dunagan who
served for most of the Revohitionary War from North Caroling while farming land i Surry County. He
remained buefly in Surey County after the war, where his is specifically listed as Thomas, [r. In tax
records in 1782 and 1784. He is probably the Thomas Dunagan later engaged in land deals in both
Greeaville County, SC, where he is listed 2 a resident, and in Franklin County, Geotgia, where he sold
land in 1796. He last appeared in the South Carolina census in 1800, but appeared later in the Barren
County, Ky censuses of 1810 and 1820, The 1820 census lists both & Thomas Jr. and 2 Thomas St. in
that county. They both should be consdered fathers of the Kentucky Dunagans and of those migrating
further west from Kentucky.

John Dunagan, St. purchased 300 acres in Surry County in 1767 and obtained land grants for another
519 acres beginning in 1783, His propertics appear to be just north of the present town of Pilot
Mountsin or further north, some 3-5 miles east of his presumed brothers’, Thomas and Joseph,
propertics on the Ararat River. Land sales identify three of his sons with certainty — Jobn Jr., William
and Justice. Other possible sons, mentioned in census and land records are James and Andrew. Census,
tax and land records place John's property far enough from Thomas and Joseph's so that both Tyre and
Jesse are highly unlikely to be John's sons, as some have thought. John Jr. Is most likely to be the John
who served so many years in Revolutionary war and died in Dickson County, TN, according to DAR
records. The fate of most of the others is voknown. All of them, except for James, disappeared from
Surry County records by 1820, James remained in Surry County for many years according to census
records, but he was never definitely associated with land ownership. Thus, we have 2 probable migration
tail from Surty County to Tennessee and farther west.

foseph Dunagan, the presumed brother of Thomas, St. And John Sr., obtained 2 land grant in 1791 in
Surry County, NC for 100 acres on the west side of the Amarat River opposite Thomas’s Jand grant at
the mouth of Flat Shoals Creek. He sold that property in 1796 but remained in Surry County at least
until the 1800 census. Shortly after the Revolutionary war n the 1780's, 2 Joseph Dunagan appeared in
land grants and sales in Greenville County, SC, Since the latter Joseph is listed in the 1790 Greenville
County census while the long-time Surry County resident, Joseph Dunagan, is listed in the Surry County,
NC census records of 1790 with a different number of dependants, they are most likely not the same
person. | strongly suspect that the South Carolina Joseph Dunagan is the son of the one from North
Carclina. Beginning in the 1790 a Joseph Dunagan is involved in numerous land deals in Frankhn and
Hall Counties, GA. He 13 associated at the same titne in both South Carolina and Georgia with an
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Fzekicl Dunagan, who most genealogists believe is his son. Although Joseph Dunagan may be the J.
Dunagan listed in the Greenville County, SC, census of 1810, he is associated after 1820 with Georgia
families. T suspect that he is the father of the numerous Dunagans of Georgia and many further West.
Time may confirm these relationships, but we have at least established = likely migration of the Surry
County Dunagans through Greenville County, SC and on to Georgia and eventuslly forther West.

Jesse Dunagan was certainly not the first Dunagan in Greenville County, but he was probably the only
one who remained as the ancestor of the Piedmont, South Carolina Dunagans. He was proceeded by
has presumed cousins, Joseph and Thomas, Jr., both of whom had dissppeared with their families befoee
1820 when he appeared in the 1820 census for Greenville County. The family data in the census records
from 1786 to 1810 in Notth Carolina are consistent with those of 1820, 1830 and 1840 in Greenville
County, SC for his family. Most likely they are the same family. Jesse’s wife would be Elizabeth, and she
woukl have remained in Greenville County until at least 1840, doubtless with some of her children and
grandchildren,

Philip Dunagan, botn in North Carolina in 1807 according to later census records, and dying in
Gowensville, Greenville County, South Carolina in 1877, would be associated geogtaphically for a long
period of time with Jesse and Elizabeth’s family and no other Dunagan family living in Greeaville
County at that time. He s listed as & debtor to 2 William Craine in an 1831 Revohtionary War pension
application by Craine of Greenville County, SC. In 1837 he married Sarah Coggins (also bom in NC)
n Greenville County. Philip’s daughter, Sarah E., named one of her sons Jesse and one Thomas,
suggesting a close relationship among Philip, Jesse and Thomas. Thus Jesse and Elizabeth are prime
candidates for being Philip’s parents.

The fate of Jesse Dunagan’s other children is unknown, but the history of some of Philip Dunagan’s
descendants is well known, at least for his daughter Mary Ann Dunagan Davis and her brother, later
named Benjumin Franklin Dunagan. Both of them had numerous children. In fact, essentially all of the
Dunagans and Dunagins of Piedmont, South Carolina ate descendants of Ben Dunagin, inchuding this
author. There were eight other siblings according to newspaper articles in the 1930's by Mary Ann
Dunagan Davis. The story passed down to my generation by my father and his cousins is that there were
4 Dunagan boys who marched off to war, 2 with the Yankees and 2 with the Rebels. Although that has
ot been confirmed, Confederate records lists 3 Dunagans from Greenville and Spartanburg Counties
who enlisted in the Civil War. Two of those evenmally were listed as deserters, whatever that meant in
those days given the ease with which records could be lost. Another Dunagan enlisted from Charleston,
but his origin and family cannot be further identified. Perhaps the unconfirmed story is cotrect, but my
grandfather stated to me that he knew of only one undle who went off to war. However, none of those
who supposedly went off to war ever returned to Greenville or Spartanburyg. Fortuoately, Benjamin
Franklin Dunagan, the youngest son, compensated for their loss by fathering the many lines of
Dunagans now found in Greenville and Spartanburg Counties.

This article, while not exhaustive, establishes 2 probable link between 2 Dunagan farily in Ireland and those
Dunagans now migrating through the Piedmont section of South Caroling and beyond. Farther information and
documentation of this article may be found in the upcoming book entitied The Hardy Dumanans of Sarry Consty,
Narth Carsina by this suthor. ' FERY S

» - -
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DR. BERRYMAN BRYANT’S REMINISCENCES OF CALIFORNIA (1849-1852)
Source: “Reminiscences of California, 1849-1852" by Berryman Bryant M.ID.*, California History
Magazine, Vol. 11, No. 1, page 35, (March 1932}

[Edtor's note: We publisheded a short biographical sketch of Dr. Berryman Beyant i the August, 2006 tssue of
this Omarterdy, p. 120. The footnote below (which appeared tn the original source noted above) provides
sdditional personal information sbout him. The main text gives Dr. Beyant’s own acconnt of his sojourn in
California for the years 18491852

We landed in San Francisco on the twelfth day of June, 1849, making four months and nine days
from Alabamsa to San Francisco, We remained in San Francisco four days; then we hired a little sail boat
1o take us 0 Sacramento; we were five days going from San Francisco to Sacramento. We artived in
Sacramento on the twenty-first day of June, 1849,

There were no buildings or houses in the city of Sacramento, all tents or canvas houses. Our
party, of course, was very anxious to get to the mines, 30 a couple of wagons and oxen were soon hired
to take the boys up upon the American river, where there was plenty of gold. One of our men, hired
ter 2 man by the name of Baly to drive an ox team. Baly gave him four hundred dollars 2 month.

1 went with the boys out to the American river and saw them do their first mining. They had
their washing machines to wash out the gokl. They went to wotk in fine spirits and soon had their
buckskin sacks full of yellow dust.

[ temained two days and then returned to Sacramento City; [ only went with the boys on & visit
and to see the prospects of mning.

1 left all my baggage in Sacramento City. | was one in perhaps a thousand that did not come to
California with the intention of mining. | had no idea of mining and have never worked a day in the
mines for when [ left Alabama for California [ had taken for granted that people would get sick in this
beautiful country, and I was not mistaken. Instead of bringing mining tools with me, as had the other
members of my company did (in which company were four physicians besides myself). [ brought five

*The author of these reminiscences was born m Spantenburg |sic] County, South Carolina, m
1816. His eatly years were spent on his father's farm, but in November, 1838, a doctor having
recommended = change of climate, be removed to Alsbama, and later went to Mississippt and to
['enmessee, where he hauled water to Memphis from a spring about a half mile from outside the aty
Itmits and sold it for twenty-five cents a barrel, also speculating in & small way in buying horses at
auction, and later engaging in brick making. He studied medicine under a Dr. Gabbott, graduated from
the Botanica Medical College at Memphis in 1847, and commenced the practice of medicine in Apail
of that year at Natchez, Miss. In the spring of 1848 he went to Canden, Wilcox County, Alabama,
where he was very successful in combating an epidemic of dysentery and soon built up 2 large practice.

On February 3, 1849, Dr. Bryant started for California with 2 company of sbout sixteen others
from Wilcox County. In Mobile they met about forty others from Alabama on the way to California,
and the two parties jointly chartered a schooner to take them across the Gulf of Mexzico to the mouth
of the Rio Grande. After a stormy and adventurous passage they landed in Mexico, and the company
once more divided into two parts. Bryant's party bought wagons and mules and traveled from
Matamoras 10 Durango, whete they sold the mules and wagons and hired pack mules to take them over
the mountains to Mazatian. There they shipped aboard 2 sailing vessel to San Francisco, where they
landed after a passage of forty-two days.
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trunks well filled with choice medicine from Mobile, Alabama.

When 1 arrived in Sacramento after my visit with the boys, there was not a place that [ could
find in which to stote away my medicines, so I went outside the city limits and dug five holes and pus
my trunks in them and filled them up and put a stake in each end to represent graves and left them there
until 1 was ready to use them. In 2 few days I bought some town lots on L street between fourth and
fifth streets and 25 #t was impossible at that time to buy lumber and build houses | resorted to willow
poles to make studding and rafters. T hired 4 man with a small boat and went up to Sacramento river
and cut steaight willows with which I made my studding and rafters putting my studding on the ground.
I then bought heavy sail duck for siding and roof, had the canvas well sewed and then T put up bunks
or berths all around the house and had some bed ticks made and filled them with dry grass for beds. |
then unearthed my ttunks of medicine and opened my hospital (this being, to the best of my knowledge,
the first private hospital opened in California) and put up a sign, “Home for the sick.” Very soon | had
every bed or cot full of the sck. Mwwldbmgtbcpomfdkmﬁxmthemmmnﬂymmox
team, frequently being four or five dayx on the road, in the hot sun and when they got them to the
hospatal, if they lived to get there, I would find them very sick.

In 1849 we had a great deal of scurvy amongst the miners, owing to their mode of Eving. We
could not get vegetables in the mines or outside. Our living was very simple as we had to do our own
cooking, we could not get a variety, consequently we had for breakfast fried poek or bacon and flour
stirred in water and fried in the grease of the pork or hacon and strong coffee; of course we did not
think of milk. For dinner we would have boiled potk and beans. At night we would duplicate our
breakfast - batter fried in grease and fried pork or bacon and strong coffee. We could not have anything
elee as it was almost impossible to get it. So 2 great many cases of scurvy of the worst kind were the
resule,

A few iterns from my day book entered in 1849 — Flour $.75 2 pound, fresh beef .50 a Ib. Butter
1.50 a b, dried apples §1.00 a pound, Saleratus (baking soda) $6.00 a pound — horse shoeing $65.00 -
Plank lumber per thousand feet $3,000.00 — passage from San Francisco to Sacramento city $20.00
Freaght from Sacramento to mines {thirty miles) $20.00 per hundred weight.

In San Francisco 2 common 30 x 50 ft. two story frame building reated for $75,00 per year.
Sacramento rents were — Room twenty feet square $10,000 per yeat; ground tent on street 10 x 12 ft..

$64.00 per month

I often paid 2 dollar for an egg — and the same for & pound of onions.

[ commenced the practice of medicine in Sacrameato City the 28th day of June 1849, I was
prepared to accommodate eighteen patients and could not take care of half of those who applied for
admittance and my outside business increased so rapidly that I had to take in & partner, so | employed
a young man by the name of Warfield and we both had all that we could possibly do.

My charge for patients in the hospital was fifteen dollars 2 day and I charged ten dollars a visit
outside, I did but very little chartity practice at this time a5 most of the men had money then; wages were
good, you could not get 2 man to do any kind of wotk for less than sixteen dollats a day. If 2 man died
you could not get a hole dug and a rough box made for less than one hundred dollars.

I was away from the hospital & few hours, one day, and while out an ox tesm drove up to the
door with a dying man in the wagon, they told the stewsrd they wanted to have the doctor take charge
of the sick man and do all for him that could be done, and went away but told the steward they woukd
come back soon and see the doctor and make arrangements for the care of the sick man. When [ came
m 1 saw the man was dying, he was a nice looking young man; the party who left him never did come
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back, | never learned 2 word about the young man. Next day [ paid a hundred dollars to have him
burted.

[ knew an old Dutchman m 1849 who went two miles below Sacramento City on the river and
cleared off the briars and vines from sbout twe acres of land and planted it out m watermelons and
made eleven thousand dollars off of the melons that grew on that spot of ground. He would sell them
as fast a5 he could bring them to the city for from five to twelve dollars & piece and they cared no more
for twelve dollars than for 2 watermelon, than they would ten cents now.

| made money very fast and on the twenty-fifth of November | sold out my hospital and
medictne to 2 doctor by the name of Hungerford, and on the first day of December started from San
Franciseo to the States having, as | thought, “made my pile.”

In a very short time I found 1 could not be contented m the States — 50 [ very soon made up my
mind to teturn to California by crossing the plains. . . . [sic; dots in otginal] I bought five wagons,
rwenty mules, and two good saddle horses and brought twenty-four men to this country who agreed
to work two years for me, | to furnsh them provisions in the mines and hrng them to Califorma,
charging them nothing to take them across the plains. | also brought a young wife across with me. ..

We left St. Joseph, Mmssouri on the 13th day of April 1850 — we had 2 company of forty-two
men altogether, [ was elected captain of the company as it was necessary to have a head or director to
take 2 large company of men. . ..

I divided my men in messes of five to each wagon. | had 2 large wall tent for each wagon. |
divided the provisions equally between each wagon. Fach mess having five to 2 wagon except my
wagon, | had six in mine. We were four months and three days from St. Joseph, Missousi to Sacramento
G e

I furnished ample provisions to have Jasted us at Jeast 2 month longer but my men were very
wasteful 30 they man short of provisions. While 1 started with just the same amount in my wagon that
each one of them had and | had one more in my wagon to feed than they had — and when the
provisions gave out 1 had plenty in my wagon to last me a month yet theirs were goae; something to
eat must be had. I could not buy a pound of anything to eat from the emigmnts so I took two men with
me and started with & couple of pack mules to find provisions. The second day after leaving the
company we came to a trading post where 1 could get some flous, 1 paid forty dollars a hundred for 1.

. . We loaded up our flour and went back to meet my company and got back just m time 1o prevent
one of my men from giving one of my fine mules for fifty pounds of flour, the mule was worth two
hundred dollass. . ..

We went on to Sacramento with no more mishaps. But then my trouble set in, | was under
ohligation to furnish them with tools necessary for their use in mining and furnish their provisions and
1o fit out twenty-four men with plenty of tools and provisions for three to five months to start them on
and to find good mining or paying claims for them to work was not only expensive but laborious and

very unpleasant, still | continned to furnish them all their provisions and tools until I found 1t would be
1o my mterest to discontinue my mterest in them.... | simply let them go and never received a dollar for
bringing them to California. They were willing to perform their contract, yet they did not seem
successful, and to look after them [ was so tied up that | could do nothiog else, wlaﬂdmthclmyado
the best you can for yourselves,

[ remained in Sacramento City about two months and then went up the road twenty miles above
Marysville on the road from Marysville to Downieville [7(sc)] and went to work and dog & well and put
up a house twenty feet by forty and put up bunks all around, two tiers one above the other, and opened
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a hotel. My business proved a success in fact very profitable.

I was crowded almost all the time. | had two good milk cows, that | brought from Salt Lake with
me, they were both giving a fine lot of milk at the time and the people were crazy for milk, ar that time,
they would come to my house to stay if possible. In fact | was so crowded and pressed for room that
I had to use a great deal of care in providing sleeping room. Everybody cartied their own blankets 1o
sleep . | was obliped after filling my bunks - to see that no one used any more room than was
necessary in spreading down their blankets on the floor,

\{;. wife and myself worked very hard, we did all our own work. With what assistance [ could
give her, she did the cooking. | would arise from my bed at four o'clock every morning and build a fire
in the stove and commence to cut beef steaks for breakfast and my wife would commence cooking, by
the time we had encugh cooked to start the breakfast we would call the men. We would then be as busy
as possible for three hours.... [ also attended to feeding the horses, night and moming, My wife and |
scarcely ever going 1o bed before twelve o’dock.

I charged a dollar for & place to sleep and from 15 cents to 25 cents a pound for badey. The
maost unpleasant part of anything connected with the business was selling whiskey. Everybody at rhat
titne drank, and 1 do business on the road, at that eardy day in California, you had 1o keep whiskey, |
did not make money by selling it, [ think | paid more money for my whiskey than 1 received for it. |
always made it 2 rule, when a person stopped over night or for a meal, to give them a dram.

I made money very fast and stayed in my canvass house over 2 year and then built a good large
house, two stoties high. I bought the land as there was 2 good spring on it. It was called the Oregon
camp six miles from where from where [ built my first house, my business greatly increased as [ was shie
to give betier accommodations and could accommodate a great many more people. | continued business
in my new house for eighteen months, thea | sold my house and business for nine thousand dollars.

On the ninth day of November 1852, 1 started to the States intending to go to Los Angeles and
spend the winter, then return to Tennessee. I bought a good spring wagon and four mules and started
by land to Los Angeles. 1 got as far as Gileoy, Santa Clars County, it began mining the day 1 left
Marysville and by the time 1 artived at Gilroy the roads were almost impassable and the ferry boat at
the Pajaro river had just been washed away. It was impossible for us 10 go any farther at that tme and
the main continued so long, it was at Jeast three months before we could have continued on our journey.

By that time the country was looking so beautiful, we had lost all desire of going any farther.

The Gilroy valley was, at that time, the most beautiful country [ had ever looked upon in all my
life. The valley was as nature had formed it, no fencing done, all uncultivared, and covered thickly all
over with wild cats, and by the first of June the cats were higher than 2 man’s head, and the fattest
horses and cattle that | ever saw in my life were in this beautiful country.

[Arrived at Gilroy, Dr. Bryant changed his mind about going back to “The States.” Instead, he
bought himself 4 ranch and stasted raising sheep. There were occasional set-backs, but Dr. Bryant was
one of the most generally successful raisers of livestock and fruit in California for many years, and after
living for a number of years in Gilroy, he built 2 large residence near San Jose”. Through the yeats he
continued his medical practice, and was for some years trustee of San Jose” State Nonmal School. He
was also & prominent Mason and Odd Fellow, and was a leading member of the Society of California
Pioneers.

Dr. Bryant died at the home of his son, Calthoun Bryant, in San Francisco on March 14, 1898,
His wife Henrietta Frances Bryant (nee Reeve) passed away on January 13, 1902,
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DESCENDANTS OF LIONEL CHALMERS
Contributed by Susan Thoms, <sussnti@nfodepot.ong™
The local history and genealogy room of the \pranmburg( ounty Publi: Libraries is called the
Kennedy Room in honor of the couple who made this countywide system possible.

Dr. Lionel Kennedy was 2 well-known Spartanburg physician when he died Apnl 14, 1880, Two
years later, his widow gave to the city her husband's book collection and the lot on which his office had
stood with the intention of creating a public hbrary. The facility opened on October 17, 1885, and was
chnstened the Kennedy Library.

Though Dr. Kennedy spent his eatire professional career in Spartanburg, his roots mn to
Charleston and to an esteemed physician of that city. The descendants’ chart of the man for whom the
Spartanburg phystcian was named, Dr. Lionel Chalmers, i below.

Descendancy Chart of Lionel Chalmers

1-Liowel Clatlmers b, Cir 1715, Campheitows, Scatiand, d. 1777, Charieston Dinirict, South Carsiing
| bt Logan € Ok 17031764, Chadosion, South Carodine
Z-Amn Bensicy Chtlmors b 4 Sep 1704, Chavboston, Soutk Carslana
+lmnes Keapady
3-Liomel Hheney Kemsody ¢ 7 Fob 1757, Charleston, Soush Carolina, d. Jon 1547, Sparswbenry Destrict, South Caeolina
«Mary-Ann Jame Sevoms
4-Liossl Chubwors Komsedy k. 17 Jan 1516, Chacloston, Souti Cacoling. & 14 Ape 1530, Sparsanbarg, Seuth Carolen
+Heles Fayssom Siephens
Clomestae Savsh Kosmeds ‘
+Gaorge Waskington Hamilton Legg b. 26 Nov 1814, Spweemabarg Divinet, Soath Carolinn !
dddward Kenmods |
Ldervis Herry Siephons Keomadh 4 | Nen 1839, Spactamherg Diweict, South Caraline
3 Wil Kemmody ¢ 9 Dec 1789, Ohurleston, South Carolion
3-Marthy Keamody ber. 4 Scp [ 99, Chackestons, South Carviva
3-Fidward Keswody ¢ 3 Feb 1082, Chorloston, South Canclion
2-Ekxsbeth Chalenors b 7 Sep 741, Clurieson, Sosth Camoling |
2-Muwths Chalwers b (2 May 1755, Charloston. Soath Carodina
2+Sarah Chalonors b | Jun 1756, Charfewtoe. Seath Caoodinn |
a-Fsane Chadmens b. 2 Feb 1762, Ohacleston, Soush Caroling
Coorpe Caadmers b 19 Feb 1763, Charfeston, Soets Carolies
+Elzabets ¢ bex. 10 Ang 1765, Ohaclesion, South Carndig
+Elizbek Wardeo
JMarguret Chgdoners b. 2 Il 1767, Chunlesion, Sovth Casvlins
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BIBLE RECORD OF JOHN RUFUS POOLE OF SPARTANBURG DISTRICT

Comtributed by Mss. Jeanne Lowe Tucker, 10000 Soowflake Court, Chardotte, NC 28215

[Contabutor’s note: This Poole family record was the first of two family records contaimed in the same Bible.

It 15 thought that George Washington Tack bought the Poole Bible at an estate sale in Spartanburg,

He then compiled his own family record in the ample blank spaces of the original Poole Bible. 1 submit both

family records. Information on the publisher and the publication date of this Bible is unkaown to me..]
[Editor’s note: The Tuck family recond follows on the next page.]

MARRIAGES
J. Rufus Poole & Amanda E. Carothers were matried the 21% November 1848

BIRTHS

John Rufus Poole was Born the 9 Feby 1829
Amanda Emma Carothers was boen the 19 April 1830
Josepha Elizabeth Poole was born the 107 October 1849

John Raoss Poole was bom December 12% 1851

Rohert Coleman Poole was botn 5 July 1854

William Rufus Poole was born 28* October 1855
Jobhn Henry Poole was bom February 3 1858
Robert Cleveland Poole was botn Jan 5 1861

DEATHS
Elizabeth Josephs Poole died fune the 107 1851
Raobert Cleveland Poole departed this life oo Eleventh Augnst 1854
Died on the 8 May 1856 John Ross Poole

“But why in anguish weep?
Hope beams upon my view:
Tis but 2 winter’s sleep;

My flowers shall spring ancw.
Each dasiing chikl in earth that sleeps,
on which fond memory hangs snd weeps.
All to new life shall rise,
in heavenly beanty bright,

Shall charm my ravished eyes,

In tints of glonous light
Shall bloom unfading in the skies,
And dnnk the dews of paradise.”

Thesr Mother

John Henry Poole died 1% Dec’r 1862
Robt Cleveland Poole died 2* day Jany 1863

> - -
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BIBLE RECORD OF GEORGE W. TUCK OF SPARTANBURG DISTRICT
Contributed by Mrs. Jeanne Lowe Tucker, 10000 Snowflake Court, Chatlotte NC 28215
BIRTHS
George Washington Tuck was Born the 6™ April 1833
Mary Lucretia Willis was Born the 9 June 1840
Marcus Edgar Tuck was born Feb. the 24 1866
Martha Emma Tuck was Bom Oct. 5* 1867
Arthur Herbert Tuck was Born the 25* June 1870
Lydia Olive Tuck was born November the 29™ 1872
Eva Ehzabeth Tuck was Bom August the 9® 1874
Mary Abce Tuck was Born June the 24" 1879
Walter Sidney Tuck Was born May the 14™ 1883
Ola Gay Tuck Was Born the 6 of Jan 1896

MARRIAGES
Georg, W. Tuck & Mary L. Willis was married the 18* May 1865,

M. Edgar Tuck & Pantha L. Hardin was married the 5* July 1885
Robert € Rollins & M. Emma Tuck was married the 27 Dec 1888
Geolrge Washington] Lowe & Lydia O. Tuck was marnied the 9* of Feb 1890
H. Boone Lattlejohn & Eva E. Tuck was martied Jan 28 1894
A. Herbert Tuck & A. Josie Littlejohn was married Jan 13 1895
Walter 5. Tuck and Leola S McCrackin was married August 27 1908

DEATHS
George Washington Tuck Died May the 18% 1884
Ola Gay Tuck Died the 11% day of Apal 1896
Mary L. Tuck died Feb. 21* 1915
Marcus Edgar Tuck Now. 13, 1922
Mary Alice July 7, 1924
Eva Elzabeth Lutlejohn  Apnl 4, 1927

DEATH OF WESLEY C. MOSELEY, NATIVE OF ABBEVILLE COUNTY
Source: Greesselie Mosniaineer, iss0e of W ednesday August 2, 1893, p. 3, col. 2

M. Wesley C. Moseley of the Sterling Grove section [Greenville County] died on yesterday morning,
about 4 o’clock, from kidney trouble. A native of Abbeville County, he moved here about 13 years ago
and for much of that period has been & comparative invalid. He was for many years a consistent
member of the Methodist church, snd held the confidence of his neighbors. The deceased was 69 years
of age, and Jeaves a widow and six children, one son, A. J. Moseley of our city, and five daughters. The
funcral services will be held today at 11 & m. at the Sandy Springs Baptist Church.
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A SKETCH OF JESSE McMAHAN, CITIZEN OF OCONEE COUNTY

Source: Greensille Mountainser, issue of Wednesday, August 16, 1893, p. 4, col. 4

AN HONORED CITIZEN.~The Keowee Courer gives some interesting facts concerning Mr. Jesse
McMahan, who lives six miles from Walhalla, and is one of the best citizens of Oconee County. He is
eighty-nine years old , and is well preserved for a man of his advanced age. He first saw the light of day
n Greenville County, near the present site of Piedmont. For several years he was a citizen of Pickens
County, residing near Easley ; but shout twenty-three years ago moved to Oconee.  His ancestors came
from Scotland and were atmong the fiest settlers of the colonial days. His father, Alexander McMahan,
was a valiant soldier in the Revolutionary war. At the age of forty years the subject of this sketch was
happily married to Miss Caroline Barrett, of Pickens County. Four daughters and five sons were bom
unto them, all of whom are living, and, with one exception, are married. There are thirty lving
grandchildren, the oldest of whom is Mr. Leland Smith, of the Oconee News. For about fifty years M.
McMahan has been a member of Carmel Preshyterian Church, and his life has been one of sobriery,
industry, and economy. His descendants are smong the most highly respected citizens of the county.
May be be spared yet many more years of green old age.

. - L
OBITUARY NOTICE OF J. H. HADDEN OF SPARTANBURG COUNTY

Source: Careling Sparten, sue of Wednesday June 15, 1892, p. 3, col. 2

|. H. Hadden died at his home, May 21 st, 1892, Age 65. He first joined Nazareth Church
[Presbytertan] (brackets in original); afterwards Mt Zion Baptist Church. He moved his membership
to Middle Tyger, at its organization, where be remained until deatch.; and was buried there. He was a
consistent christian; & good citizen; a kind husband, father and neighbor. While sick he said, “The
foundation of my faith and hope is in Christ’s blood and rightecusness.” “1 safe in the atts of Jesus.”
He could say that, “For me, to live is Christ, and to die is to gain.”
Wellford, S. C. A.

[warterdy Editors note: A grave marker in the cemetery of Duncan First Baptist Church (formerdy Middle Tyger)
reads: James H. Hadden, 27 Dec. 1826 — 21 May 1892.)

FORMER SPARTAN HIGHLY HONORED BY MISSOURIANS
Source: The Spartanburg Herald, Sunday, December 11, 1938, Section B. page 8
On the campus of the Missourt School of Mmcs at Rolla, Missourt, stands an mmposing building
christened Harris Hall, 2 tribute to the outstanding achievements of 2 former Spartanburg man.

The structure was erected and named in honor of Prof. Elmo G. Harris, professor emeritus of civil
engineeting at the Missouri School of Mines, one of the most prominent educational institutions of 1ts
kind in the world.

Has Relatives Here
Professor Harrnis is 2 brother of the late |. West Harris of Spartanburg. His parents were David
Golightly Harris and Emily Lyles Harris, and his grandfather, Col. W. W. Hatris, was long prominent
11 this section.

Born in Spartanbusg June 7, 1861, professor Hartis 1s recognized as one of the world's outstanding
contributons to the science and practice of hydraulics and compressed air. After recetving the degree of
cavil engineer from the University of Virginia in 1882, Professor Harrts engaged in professional work
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for ten years 1 South Carolina, \h««v-lppt Arkansas, Texas and Oklahoma. During this time he
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The Air Lift Pump

While C‘lx}?i}"{‘l] 1n putting down the foundation of a bridge crossing the Arkansas river, he discovered
the principle of the air lift pump and was the first to publish the theory and the working formula for the
3 ;x of pumnp.

In 1891, Professor Hams went 10 Rolla as professor of civil engineering and director of the Missouri
School of Mines. He resigned the directorship of the school m 1893, but continued to serve until 1931,
when he retired with the tithe of professor emenitus, recerving Carnegie allowance

Diversity of Interests

Professor Harns has had a diversity of sterests mcluding 2 love of the Ozark hills and woods and
streams and has been a famed hunter, fisherman and woodsman. In the unmediate outdoors he has
heen an active gardener of flowers, fnuits and vegetables. His lasting interest has been as builder of
residences. As a citizen, Professor Harns has given hberally of his talents to the service of has city and
stale.

Whilk the chief contributions of Professor Hartis have been in the field of hydrauhes and compressed
atr, he has written two bulleting on Ozark local roads and two bulletins and many studies urging
economy m the design and construction of concrete culverts, bridges and dams. His discovery of the
air-hft pump led him mto the fascinating study of the technicalities of compressed air. His uncovering
of new matter led to his publication of two bulletins and then to publication of a text book on
compressed air which has gone through two editions and 1s still selling. The book and the bulleans
inchade the results of a research conducted by Professor Harnis at the Msoun School of Mmes to
determine loss of fricion 1 prpes transmatting compressed air.

Patents Pump

He 15 the patentee of several pumps which are internationally known.

An interestmg descrption of Professor Harris' life and activity was given m the address by Prof. |.B.
Butler, member of the faculty of the Missourt School of Mmes, during the ceremonies attendant upon
the laying of the camerstone of Harns Hall oo the campus at Rolla, November 14,

Professor Butler paxd eloquent ribute to Professor Harris' remarksble achievements as & teacher and
45 an engineer and scientist.

Onher speakers who eulogized Professor Harris at the ceremonies were Dr. Henry E. Riggs, president
of the Amencan Socety of Crval Engmeers and EM. Bayne, asustant director of the Works Progress

dmumnstmanon for Muisourn
Tribute From School

[he program printed for the occaston contamed this note:

" In honor of Elmo Gaolightly Harns, professor ementus of cvil engineering, who since 1891 has
given the Missoun School of Mines and Metallurgy his fasthful and untinng efforts in building the
school up to the international reputation which 1t now enjovs; whose able teaching has left the imprint
of lus high standards of education upon many of the school’s alumni who have gone forth to contribute
to the advancement of our country and of the world through the routine and construction of our
radroads and highways; who by his kindly and friendly interest in those studymg under him and working
with him has won 9 lasting place m their affections, this busldimg s named.”
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SHERIFF’S SALES FOR ANDERSON DISTRICT IN 1843

Editor’s note: In addition to the information conveyed by their publication, Sheriff’s sales notices are
indicators of legal actions deliberated in the Court of Commons Pleas or in the Court of Equity. These
associated court records could lead to further genealogical information.
Anderson Gagtde, issue of Saturday, December 16, 1843, p.-3,c0l5
ANDERSON SHERIFF'S SALES
BY VIRTUE OF WRITS OF FIRRI FACIAS TO ME DIRECTED,
Will be sold at Anderson Court House on the first Monday & Tuesday in January next

1 Geay Mare and Colt, and 100 acres of land mote or less whereon the defendant lives, adjoining
lands of Mary McDowell and others, also at defendant’s house ... two Sows and Pigs, three Fatiening
Hogs, 2 stacks of Fodder, one stack of Oats, one hundred and fifty pounds of sced cotton and some
corn Husks and Straw, as the property of Jatmes Willingham at the suit of Mathew Gambeell

I'he undivided interest of James E. Massey, in the ttact of land whereon Kindred Massey, deceased,
formerly lived, containing four hundred acres more or less adjoining tands of John E. Notris & others
st the suit of S. Lindsey & Co. va. James E. Massey and wife.

233 acres of land more or less, adjoining lands of Moody Gentry, Hiram Howard, and others, as the
property of James Jones, at the sepanate suit of Thomas Burres, sen’r va. James Jones survivor and H.
Richards and Reuben Burroughs vs. James Jones survivor.

155 acres of land more or less, whereon W. H. Bowie now lives adjoining lands of William Cook and
others, as his property, at the suit of Thomas Burres vs. William H. Bowie and D. Tucker.

113 acres of land more or less, whereon the defendant lives, adjoining lands of James Watt, Henry
Roach and others, 2s the propetty of John R. Green, at the suit of Isabella G. Harden.

100 acres of land more or less, adjoining lands of Henry Roach and others, as the property of John
Green, at the suit of Jacob Mouchat vs. William Green and Joha Green.

280 acres of land more or less, on Twenty Six Mile Creek, whereon Richard Golden now lives,
adjoining lands of James Watson and others, as the property of Andrew Oliver, also the tract of land
whereon he now lives containing three hundred acres mote or less adjoining lands of A. Martin &
others; ten Negroes: Letty, Candas, Caroline, Leah and her three children {Susan, Alfred, and William),
Louisa, Malenda and her child Sarah Elizabeth; one Road Waggon and three Horses. Also, on the day
following at the residence of Andrew Oliver two mules, 6 head of cattle, one lot comn supposed to be
450 bushels, 5 stacks fodder, one Grind Stone, one Joom, some Plows and Plow Gear, one lot shucks,
stock Hogs, some cooking utensils and sundey small articles all as the property of Andrew Oliver at the
separate suits of Martha Oliver and the State vs. Andrew Oliver in two sepanate cases.

172 acres of land more or less, whereon defendant now lives, adjoining lands of John Wilson, Robert
Bowen and others; also, one Negro woman Louisa and four children (Aan, Lindy, Lem, and Ben), as
the property of R. F. Blasingame at the suit of T. M. Sloan {Indorsee) vs. Joel E. Welborn and R. E.
Blasingame.

The tract of land whereon the defendant lives containing fifty-five acres more or less, on Rocky River,
adjoining Luke Haynie and othets, as the property of Hartison Posy, at the suit of James Major.

150 acres of land more or less, wheteon the defendant lives, adjoining lands of John Owen and others;
also one Road Waggon, 4 head of homses, to wit: 2 sorrels, 1 Gray, 1 Roan. Also at defendant’s house,
the day following, 2 cows and calves, 1 work Steer, 17 head of stock Hogs, 300 bushels Corn, 1000
bundles Oats, as the property John S. Swords, at the suit of Thomas Dickerson.
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bundles Oats, as the property John 8. Swords, at the suit of Thomas Dickerson.

2 Bay Mares. Also at defendant’s house on Tuesday, 150 bushels of Cormn, as the Property of B, G.
Dibworth, at the suit of Robert Bowen.,

Two Negro gitls, Phillis and Virginia, ax the property of R. Giles, at the suit of William Sherard and
others,

Conditions, cash—Purchaser to pay for titles.

A. N. MC FaLL, Shenff
Anderson C. H., December 7, 1843
QUERIES
(Please send queries to the editor, whose addresses appear on the inside front cover.)

SMITH HIBBS
Grace Cochean, 107 Connie Drive, Dalton, Ga 30721 (706) 259-5992, < ghcochran{@optilink.us>
My name s Grace Cochran and | am collecting our family history for our children. I obtained your
E-mail address from the Piedmont Historical Society web-page and I'm hoping that you can help me
with the following. | am trying to obtain directions to the grave sites of Ralph Smith (will proved 18
October 1784) and his wife Ann Hibbs in Spartanbutg county. The information | have states that they
are buried (graves marked only by a pile of stones) in ¢ small grove a short distance from Cross Anchor
Highway near New Garden in Spartanburg County. [would like to know the specific location with GPS
co-ordinates if possible. Is it possible that a permanent marker has been erected? Also, assuming the
graves are on private property, I need to know whom to contact regarding visiting the site. | would
appreciate any assistance o this matter - either pertinent information or referral to other sources. Thank
you so much for your help.

McABEE BLACK

Bettye M. Bradford, 1705 Money St., LaVergne, TN 37086

| am searching for Thomas 1. McAbee, bom arcund 1840 in Spartanburg County, SC. Hix father may
have been Chardes McAbee, who was bom around 1813 in SC. His wife was Louret O. Angeline
McAbee, born around 1837, who may have been a Miss Black . Thomas fought in the Civil War. John
McAbee was born around 1844,

ELLSWORTH CROCKER

Evelyn Crocker, 159 CR 430, Paris, MS 38049, 6624731262 <texannusa36@yahoo.com™

[ am seeking the exact marriage date for Samuel Ellsworth (b. February 7, 1792 in NY) and Rhoda
Crocker (b. January 11, 1785, Spartanburg County). Rhoda was a daughter of Solomon and Susannah
Crocker.

PATTERSON HENDERSON

Lewgh Ann Boyd, 428 Quill Drive NW, Cleveland, TN 37311, <LPartin(@ aol.com>

[ am looking for a will of William Baskin Patterson or any other document that names his children. At
one pomt William Baskin Patterson and his wife, Jeanette Henderson Patterson, lived i Abbeville
District, South Carolina. It is my belief that the parents of William Baskin Patterson were John and
Margaret Baskin Patterson. 1am trying to prove lineage for DAR membership.
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HUTCHESON WORLEY/WHIRLEY DONALDSON

Daniel Martin Worley, Worley Family Clearinghouse, 1301 Mossy Rock Rd. NW, Kennesaw,

GA 30152-4815, 770-428 8507  <dmwrlybrd@mindspring.com

Need help finding information about Hannah Hutcheson, daughter of Drury Hutcheson of Spartanburg
District from about 1804 to 1821. Hannah matried William Worley of Rutherford County, NC, and
he sold her interest in the estate of Drury Hutcheson to one Henry Hutcheson (Spastanburg County
Deed Book R, page 296). Hannsh and William Worley had 2 son James Hutcheson Worley, who was
bom 10 Sept. 1807 and who “. . . grew up in Spartanburg . . .”. James H. Worley married Mills
Dongldson, born 14 Oct. 1812, the daughter of Willam H. and Flizabeth Eaton Donsldson of
Pendleton District {later Pickens District), SC. William Worley and his wife Hannah along with James
Worley and his wife Milly moved to Lampkin County, Ga, and all of them are busied there. Who was
Henry Hutcheson? Where did he live?

YOUNG
Keany Wood, Peatland, Texas <KWood10023@aol.com>»
[ am Looking for information on my ancestor Zimn Young. Zimri was bomn in York District, S. C. in
1804 and died there between 1870 and 1880. 1 think his father might have been Sanmuel Young, since
Samuel Young was in York District in 1800. Any help will be much appreciated.
NAMES RESEARCHED BY
PIEDMONT HISTORICAL SOCIETY MEMBERS-7th LIST

Eowler, Bertha K, — 224 S. Boyce St., Union, SC 29379; 864-427-2407;
Tanner; Pope; Carter; Keith; Page; Garner

B.idgmm&—ho. Box 286, Donalds, SC 29638; 864-374-2858;
Branyon; Elgin; Richey; Drake
Harzris, Jetry—134 Clinton Court, Cary, NC 27511; 919-467-1138;
Sanders, Spthg. Co.; Bamett, G'ville Co.; Griffin, Spthg. Co.; Dillard, G'ville Co.; Coyle,
Cherokee Co.; Scott, Cherokee Co.; Adedge, Polk Co., NC; Alewine, Gville Co.
Worley, Danicl M.—1301 Mossy Rock Rd., Nw, Kennesaw, GA 30152; 770-428-8507;
&m@m Baker; Davis; Hutcheson; Donaldson; Kell; Kennedy; McCravey; Pelfrey;

Murphy, Patricia K.—9495 Charlotte Hwy., Fort Mill, SC 29715; 803-548-1934; Murphy; Milam;
Wright; Yeager; Oxford; Ramage; Gillespie; Adair; Laferty; Tate
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